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Report from the President
SRS

President's Forward for
Annual Report 2007

2007 is an important year for the HKSAR as we celebrate the
10th Anniversary of Hong Kong's return to China.

The period leading up to the handover on 1 July 1997 was
rosy but very soon afterwards, the economy of Hong Kong
suffered with the Asian Financial Crisis for several years and

hit bottom with the outbreak of SARS in 2003 followed by
the loss of confidence in the Government.

Architects are the first to be hit in any economic downturn
and our members were not spared. We had to be innovative
in seeking new markets to survive.

This year, we had the election of the Chief Executive of
Hong Kong in March with the return of Donald Tsang as the
CE of HKSAR for a second term of five years.

At the same time, the economy has improved with
substantial works in China, Macau, Vietnam and the Middle
East besides those of Hong Kong.

With the new Government, the Development Bureau was
established much like the old Public Works Department
which groups all the development departments under
one roof to try to unify interpretation and speed up the
development approval process. This Bureau is still young
since its inception in July 2007 under the capable hands of
its Secretary, Mrs Carrie Lam.

There are still many challenges ahead to streamline Hong
Kong's approval process and improved planning for
developments but we are hopeful that given patience and
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Report from the President
SRS

President's Forward for
Annual Report 2007

time, matters can only improve for a better Hong Kong and
for our members.

In the meantime, HKIA has a new President and some new
Council Members. Last year, with the 50th Anniversary of
HKIA, there were a lot of celebrations. This year is a year of
consolidation where the core business of the Institute and
its working are being reviewed together with our financial
position. A management consultant has been appointed
to advise the Institute and | hope the report will be ready in
late November.

One important issue is to address the financial deficit
left over from previous years and without an increase
in subscription, we are unable to balance our recurrent
operating costs.

It is inevitable that after 10 years, our subscription will have
to be revised and | look for your support to help Council
work for you.

| thank this year’s Council for working so hard for the
Institute and thank Chris Gabriel, Ronald Chow and Wilson
Lee who are retiring from the Council at the end of this year
and the election of Martin Tam, Rosman Wai, Edwin Chan
and the re-election of Alice Yeung and Tony Tang to the
Council of 2008 and 2009.

The Secretariat staff have also been working tirelessly this
year and we appreciate their efforts.

Dr Ronald Lu, FHKIA
President
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Board of Local Affairs (BLA) and its committees
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Education & Careers Expo Working Group

YIU Chin Pang Benjamin, Chairman
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Annual Awards 2006 Committee

CHOW Sai Hung Ronald, Chairman
TANG Wai Kin, Deputy Chairman
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100-year of Architecture
in Hong Kong Committee

LAl Tung Yiu, Chairman



Board of Internal Affairs (BIA) and its committees
NIFERFEINE NEER
EETMEES || Book Publication Committee

(EF) =R LEE Hung Wai Wilson, Chairman
(BIERF) SFILKEK LUSH Alexander, Deputy Chairman

gitEwBESE | House Committee

(EF) 5&0E LOK Man Fai Felix, Chairman

HiERENEESE | Media Resources & Publication Committee

(RERE) REE2 CHAN Chi Sing Rex, Co-Chairman
(RER) BRE CHOI Wun Hing Donald, Co-Chairman

BEEEx220082F® | Quality Building Award 2008
Organising Committee

(fAF) 2888 CHOI Kam Lung Franky, Representative
(ffF) B%1E HAU Hon Fai Patrick, Representative

pi2Edas R85 | Student and Graduate Member Committee

(XFE) EBUA WONG Ching Long Jerome, Chairman

EBHREHESESE | Welfare and Activities Committee

(XE) B0 WONG Ching Long Jerome, Chairman

HERHMESE | Young Architect's Committee

(BERE) K811 CHU Hoi Shan Paul, Co-Chairman
(BRERE) 2558 MAK Hon Ming Franky, Co-Chairman




s |

(EF) HiEE
(RIERE) ELAREK
FER

(EIF=3

X3

eSS
FLA
BB EE
RS
(BRER) oTft
(ERER) 7308

PHXARESE

(ER) HUGH Errol Patrick

BINEREESE

(XF) oz

BRI EEEE

(EF) DEUKRER

[ER PSR 328 AT 175 &5 55 DU [
[Z2NEHE| TN

(EF) =55
(RIER) BRI

Board of External Affairs (BExXA) and its committees

RINSHEIRE NLES

Board of External Affairs (BExA)
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Academic Exchange Committee
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UIA Committee
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'Architecture for All' Committee
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WAI Chui Chi Rosman , Deputy Chairman
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LAM Ping Hong Robert, Chairman
LAU Kwing Lam Glenn, Deputy Chairman
CHAN Chiu Ming
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TANG Wai Man Tony, Chairman
CHI Wuh Cherng Daniel, Deputy Chairman
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HKIA Medal of the Year
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Stanley Municipal Services Building
FEMBRAE

HKIA Merit Award
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A Purpose Designed Building for
Centralised Science Laboratories, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong
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HKIA Merit Award
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S.K.H. St Andrew's Primary School and

S.K.H. St Mary's Church Mok Hing Yiu College
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HKIA Merit Award
EHEERMEEERE

Education Resource Center cum
Public Transport Interchange
at Kowloon Tong
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Award for Members' Work
Outside of Hong Kong E5MERLE

Clubhouse of Kunshan Shimao Butterfly Bay
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Award for Members' Work
Outside of Hong Kong E5MERLE

Kunming EXPO Eco-Town INTEGER project
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Award for Members' Work
Outside of Hong Kong #MEMEE

VICE VERSA Hong Kong, China

Exhibition at Venice Biennale International

Architecture Exhibition, 2006

2006 B BT Bl B L S F R BB
[ INER sl | REE

I President’s Prize
ERIER

Reconstructlon of Wong Shek Public Pier
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Special Architectural Award -
Architectural Research
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Quiality of Life for Public Housing with
Emphasis on Health and Safety Issues
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Special Architectural Award -
Architectural Research
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Micro-climate Research Studies for
Sustainable Public Housing Development
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Special Architectural Award -
Urban Design
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Beautification of Tsim Sha Tsui Promenade
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Deed of Constitution

MBS

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED being met together on the third day of September
in the year one thousand nine hundred and fifty-six and being desirous of

fori
of

ming a Society in the Colony of Hong Kong for the general advancement
Civil Architecture and for promoting and facilitating the acquirement of

the knowledge of the various Arts and Sciences connected therewith DO
HEREBY BAND OURSELVES TOGETHER IN A SOCIETY TO BE KNOWN
AS THE HONG KONG SOCIETY OF ARCHITECTS and do undertake as
Foundation Members to subscribe to the funds and be bound by the Rules of
the Society AND DO FURTHER DECLARE AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
283.
24.
25.
26.
27.

Su

that the Society shall consist of Members, Honorary Members, Associates,
Graduates and Students;

. that the Society shall elect and be governed by a Council consisting of a

President, two Vice-Presidents, and such other Officers and Members of
Council as it may decide;

. that the Society shall make such Rules for its own good governance and

the conduct of its members as it may from time to time think fit;

. that the Society shall have power in its corporate name to acquire, hold

and dispose of property and funds and shall to this end comply with
Ordinances of the Government of Hong Kong;

. that the Society shall invite and have as its Patron a person of eminence in

colony.

W Elder Levie
J C Charter

A M J Wright
J B Aitken

T C Yuen

Wm S Ing

H S Luke
William Ling
Bjorn Nedberg
G Hollmann
W G Gregory
G D Su

David P Crease

bscribed by the Foundation Members at the Second Inaugural

Meeting of the Society on 3rd September, 1956
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Formation

On 3rd September, 1956, 27 architects gathered and formed a Society
“for the general advancement of Civil Architecture and for promoting
and facilitating the acquirement of the knowledge of the various Arts and
Sciences.” Thus The Hong Kong Society of Architects was formed. On
7th May, 1957, the first amendments were made, to stand for over two and
a half years. During this period the membership of the Society increased
by 50% and recognition as an Allied Society was given by Royal Institute
of British Architects. In accord with this growth further amendments were
made to come into effect on 3rd November, 1959. By the end of 1962, the
Society expanded to a membership seven times as large as that first body of
foundation members.

The changes of name from Society to the Institute was effected in 1972 after
a great deal of preparatory work, and has initiated a new phase of activity
in the Institute’s affairs. Members will use the professional affix — Architect
HKIA and describe themselves as Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Architects. Associates will describe themselves as Associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Architects in full. No abbreviation of this is permitted.

Purpose

The two main purposes of the Institute are to continue to raise both the
standard of architecture in Hong Kong and the standard of professional
services offered by its members.

Code of Professional Conduct

In addition to the responsibilities of architects as professionals under law,
members of the institute are governed by a Code of Professional Conduct.
This Code aims to provide the standard of professional conduct and self-
discipline required of the members of the Institute in the interest the general
public.

Discipline

A member whose conduct is found to be in contravention of the Code or
dishonouring the principle of the Code is liable to reprimand, suspension or
expulsion. This ensures that the public receives from HKIA members only the
highest standard of professional service.

Service to the Public

The Institute also serves the public by applying the collective expertise of
its members in an advisory role to government and to the building industry.
Today, HKIA is represented in numerous consultative or advisory bodies
ranging from a working group which counsels the drafting of new building and
planning legislation to a committee which formulates standard contracts for
use in the building industry.
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Architectural Education

In the field of education, the Institute works closely with the two Universities,
namely, the University of Hong Kong and the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and offers courses and counsel in professional practice and practical
experience in architecture.

Professional Qualification

Every year, candidates aspiring to the professional qualification of Architect
sit a professional examination held by the Institute. Successful candidates
receive recognition not only from professional bodies in Hong Kong but also
in UK, Australia, Canada, USA and other countries.

International Participation

In recent years, the Institute takes Hong Kong to the fore in international
circles through its active participation in the International Union of Architects
(UIA), the Commonwealth Association of Architects (CAA), and the Architects
Regional Council of Asia (ARCASIA).

Organization

Today, The Hong Kong Institute of Architects has around 150 Fellows, more
than 2200 full members and over 400 associate members and graduate
members. The Institute is governed by a Council consisting of a President,
two Vice-Presidents, an Honorary Secretary, an Honorary Treasurer, eight
Ordinary Members of the Council, the Immediate Past President (ex-officio
member) and the Chairmen of the Boards. The Boards, appointed by the
Council, are formed to deal with specific areas in the objectives of the
Institute. They are the Board of Educational Affairs, Board of External Affairs,
Board of Internal Affairs, Board of Local Affairs, Board of Practices and Board
of Mainland Affairs. These Boards in turn appoint Committees to deal with
matters within the area of responsibility of the Boards.
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The First Quarterly General Meeting (14 March 2007)
F—FFEEXE (2007%F3HA14H)

REEHRT The Board of Practices(BP)
1. FHERE 1. New Committees
o ZH[E $ﬂ¥$i§§‘iﬁz—|—ﬂ’]_{.;§ﬁﬁ’]§ g€ * Three new committees are now under Board of Practices, namely
fgsEsEge . E\;E\@ Architectural Specialization Committee, Corporate Membership
A X RALS ﬂﬁ¢$ﬁ%§ . Committee, and Contract and Dispute Resolution Committee.
== /\ El
2. Corporate Membership
NS B &
= 'L‘;‘ls\ﬁfj o e Consultation Meetings are being held with the member practices for
* EQEQ%HE AEBENHEE imfigﬁ ° the introduction of the Corporate Membership. It is hoped that the
200746 - 7 AELFTE B - new membership will be launched in mid 2007.
3 EREMEEME 3.BIM Seminars
o WRBEEHEAY S RISEEEEERT e Three CPD seminars on Building Information Modelling (BIM) were
el B 22 A HIRET - held between January and February.
4. BERREHERNREEERRRID 4. Mediation for Construction and Property Development

Matters
Pilot scheme for Mediation for Construction and Property
Development Matters will be launched by the end of March.

s BEREHERBEEHRBEARITENIA
JEPEERR o

EhEHE The Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1 =% 1. Nominations

s MRERSCABRERBEMT RIREE * Mr Kyran Sze was re-nominated to the Building and Civil Engineering
JIEEEEZKE - Training Board of Vocational Training Council.

o BEIE T 4 A FAI SRS IR E ATIFS e Mr Henry Lau King Chiu, Mr Edward Shen were re-nominated, and
SESe YRS BISESILE Rt R bk Mr Tony Chan Sui Tung and Mr lvan Ho Man Yiu were nominated to
BIEBRIEE - h the Board of Review (Inland Review Ordinance).

Al INTRE
e Mr Donald Choi was re-nominated to Construction Industry Training

. gf!if’ﬁiﬁgﬁx/\ﬁ% REEFIRBK Authority.

I

’ .- — ‘ﬂ_
ple oo o0 A
1. Group photo of YAPF 2006 Committee Member on 13 January 2007

2. Group Discussion of YAPF 2006 on 13 January 2007
3. Building Information Modelling (BIM) Seminar - 29 January 2007
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2. Presentation in Legislative Council

The Institute was invited by Legislative Council to deliver views on the
following subjects :

* on the conservation of Queen’s Pier in the meeting of Panel on
Planning, Lands and Works on 23 January 2007.

* on the developments creating wall effects in the meeting of Panel on
Planning, Lands and Works on 27 February 2007.

3. Press Release
e A press release was issued by the Institute on the upcoming built
heritage conservation policy public consultation on 18 January 2007.

e A press release was issued on the Institute’s response to 2007/08
HKSARG budget.

4. Queen’s Pier

A paper on the conservation of Queen’s Pier was presented to the
Panel on Planning, Lands and Works of the Legislative Council on
23 January 2007.

¢ The Institute submitted comments to Town Planning Board for in-situ
preservation of Queen’s Pier on 16 February 2007.

® The Institute sent a letter to Antiquities Advisory Board requesting for
review on the conservation of Queen’s Pier on 28 February 2007.

5. Responses to Local Affairs
Apart from the consultation by Legislative Council, the Board also
made responses to the following local affairs :

e The Institute responded to the public consultation on the way
forward for the competition policy of Hong Kong on 5 February
2007.

e The Institute also responded to the consultancy study on the
feasibility of introducing a smart card to replace the various industrial
safety training certificates on 6 February 2007.

1. Building Information Modelling (BIM) Seminar — 1 February 2007
2. Education & Career Expo 2007 (1-4 February 2007) 25 & B3 1& € 2007 (200725 1-4H)
3. Careers Seminar at Education and Careers Expo 2007(2 Feb 2007) # & R % G82007 2 Bt ¥#tfz1& (2007F2H2H)




6. HIEBAF/5h BB E RS 6. Meeting with the Government / External Organizations

Home Affairs Bureau:

e 20071 B4 Y iEEIREWEHITE ¢ The Institute met with Dr Patrick Ho, Secretary for Home Affairs on
HERREREEESE - the built heritage conservation policy on 4 January 2007.

¢ Representatives of the Institute joined the focus group meeting with

Be/tER
* 2007F2ASHEERRSMT BRKFL Home Affairs Bureau to discuss on built heritage conservation on 5

BA ﬁaﬂﬁ@ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%\ E‘TE’%@ ° February 2007.
il R Urban Renewal Authority:

* 200751 A 23R EMRERZRHITRAEEA * A briefing cum breakfast meeting was held with Mr Billy Lam,
HEPEE#% UTERNIRESIBREEL Managing Director of Urban Renewal Authority on the latest progress
5% o of key URA projects on 23 January 2007.
= S Housing, Planning and Lands Bureau (Planning and Lands):

o 200741 A 230 B B & 18 Bl B (TR e The Ilnst|tute met with Mrs Rita Lgu, Permanent Secretary for

. Housing, Planning and Lands (Planning and Lands) on 23 January
ERERE -
2007.

* 2007F1 A EMERBRARFHE - BiE e The Institute also met with Housing, Planning and Lands Bureau,
ERREBBBEREIATRRARESH ° and Civil Engineering and Development Department on Queen’s Pier
TARIREBAREBENTHRESE=ZHT conservation on 31 January 2007. CEDD presented the progress of
RBHEEREFEENER - 81 Central Reclamation Ill and information of Queen’s Pier. The Institute
HIRTFEEIEEMES - presented proposal on conserving Queen’s Pier in-situ.

7.2007 NS B EZRE 7. Green Study Tour 2007 Beijing

e 20072 H9RE 110 - G EEEEDS . 25mmembers forming the Green Study Tour 2007 plac'e.d a visit to
SEABThABEAN AL + BEX Beijing between 9 and 11 February 2007. The Tour visited places
HHEZ sl e = including CCTV + TVCC, The National Stadium - Bird’s Nest, The

fthl - BREBES f%%@J - %’ﬁﬂk National Aquatics Centre - Water Cube, 798 Art Factory, Commune
Rl [KSZA ] - 798&MT A ~ R by the Great Wall, Tsinghua University Eco-building, Shangdi MOMA
TERQM  BERBHERE - EFEMOMA etc.

o=,

2 B
1-2. HKIA Council Courtesy Visit to Beijing (8-9 February 2007) ¥ & &4t R 7z
3. Annual Awards — Site Visit (9 February 2007)




HEEED Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)
1. 2006 F B XAFRB LM 1. Result of written papers 2006
o —EE NFHIAFTKEAM ¢ Result of written papers 2006: 117 passes against 338 (34.62%)
1172 HE RR338EHE KL EBES 2. Candidates numbers 2006
(34.62%) ¢ Total no. of candidates taking written papers and interview: 387
2.2006F £ AR e Total no. of candidates eligible for interview on 22 March 2007: 129

o R of which 117 candidates plus 12 re-sit
o EEFXRFTEEMBAR : H5t 3875 o
3. Enhancing the Professional Assessment

s AERBF_FTLF=A-—t-HEH e Mr Choi Chee-cheong, the past Secretary General of Hong Kong
ZABHET 1294 - P MTRIEM124 Examinations & Assessment Authority, has been commissioned to
BELE - identify room for enhancing the HKIA-ARB Professional Assessment.

3. =T 4.HKIA-ARB Joint Review of List of Professional/

o EAER DAL BHIMESRES hAE Registration Qualifications
TEe L EBRIIET M =BT e Aim of the review: update the current list of professional registration
R o bodies of architects for taking HKIA/ ARB Professional Assessment,

which was first set up in end-2002.

4 FERBHPARREGEREERN . o

SERSRERIHEER e 4 CPD seminars were held in January and February 2007:

> BLARS § B = o tFan2 I3 e Under BIM, th 1. The New Technol 2. The | ti
BREMEERBEMEMERRRA 2 s Tt e o
FEARMEEMBRE S LI EMEME R '
B&gE| o ¢ Document Management

5. BN EBERE

o MRFBEZFEBERTNECN2007F1
A R2ANBRIERTT -

s BREAMBUMANGROA/UT=ZETE
1. ¥, 2. 5, 3. KB -

o XHER -

1-2. Annual Award —Conclusion Meeting on 10 February 2007
3. Green Tour 2007 — Beijing (9-11 February 2007) 2007 4t 4% 5% 23 (2007F2H9-11H)




C.HEFRENESERIRERE 6. Education & Careers Expo & Careers Talk
(2007%2A1H-4R) (1-4 February 2007)
o BeRNO007TE2 A1 AR RITHHE Ry ¢ The Institute staged a double-booth at the Education & Careers

L RE o Expo held during 1-4 February 2007.

o TE/MEMRCRIEEAM200742A2H
THBEREE - W N DAEXBEEM
FEFTANS °

e Working group leader: Mr Benjamin Yiu, gave a career talk on 2
February 2007, which attracted a sizeable audience.

Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)
1. Council’s Courtesy Visit to MOC (7-9 February 2007)

o
R 3 e With help of the Liaison Office of the People’s Republic of China
1. BESHGERESS in Hong Kong, a 13-member delegation paid a courtesy visit to

(2007%F2R87-98) the Ministry of Construction, Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office
o 10 A BRI T L A I 1T Ik [ B 4R State Council, Architectural Society of China and China Architecture

Design & Research Group on 8-9 February 2007. The delegation
was received by Beijing authorities on a high-level reception tour.
The delegation also went to the HKIA Beijing Representative Office.

ARENBHT  BESMISARKRERE
2007F2 A8-9R Fr B E0 - Bk SR

EBMWAE - F @Qfé—%%ﬁ H @%‘:“3% In the evening of 8 February, the delegation met with HKIA members
AIETERE - KREBHIERERSMREE working in Beijing and non-resident member in Beijing.

7o RREEDHBEULRARE - B2A
8EER  KREEILRER THEILRTIE
MEBMFEEER -

2. Mutual Recognition Exercise 2007
¢ Kick-off meeting was held at HKIA on 5 February 2007.

3. Invitation of Annual Awards — Awards Presentation and

2.2007FHWHER Exhibition Ceremony to Mainland members

* F—RTIFEHAE2007THF2H5H THBE e Mainland Members will be invited to visit the HKIA premises, an
HEMBERT ROFEMNERERIE architectural practice and a project in Hong Kong, and the awards
BEFE o presentation and exhibition ceremony on 20 April 2007.

MFEANEREMFEEREHEE
RERERE

o BeEENE 8E2007F4A20HEE
BLRERLTEEMEEY  LABEMES
B+ TF21H B M FE2006F FiEH BB R
ERERERAS -
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1. Academic Exchange Committee
Asia Cultural Co-operation Forum (ACCF) 2007 — Culture Coming
Home

e The ACCF theme will be “Culture Coming Home” to tie in with the
10th Anniversary of HK’s return of sovereignty to the Mainland. HKIA
has been invited to participate by Home Affairs Bureau, HKSARG.

DVD-ROM introducing HKIA

e The production of HKIA DVD is being worked out by the Committee
to cover events and information of the Institute.

2. Overseas Excursion Committee
e Trips to Moscow, Japan, Korea, Shanxi and Kaiping are being
organized by the Committee.

3 Commonwealth Association of Architects (CAA) 18
General Assembly (17-18 April 2007)

e CAA 18 General Assembly and Council Meeting has been
postponed to 17-18 April 2007 in Melbourne, Australia. President
Ronald Lu and BExA Chairman Christopher Gabriel as the HKIA
representatives for attendance.

4 UIA Council Meeting and Work Programme Directors
Meeting (10-12 February 2007)

e UIA Council Member and Region IV Work Programme Director
Joseph Kwan attended the next Work Programme Directors Meeting
and the UIA Council Meeting which were held on 10-12 February,
2007 in Turin, Italy.

1-2. Welcoming Event for new member &% € 8% &) (2007F3A158)
3. Perspective 2007 'Round Table Discussion on Sustainable Design in Asia' (1 March 2007)




AEBEEE

1.2006 EAFEFRERE
o F—F  WHISTHEBEEMEBE2006F
FHRNDEER

* 2006 F R EHMS EN2007F4H19
ATRF3RREBEEMBSNER - &5
BEMMEeRTEEREMBEERE -

* 20074 H20R-248 * TEE @A L —
HMAZERTEAEEMBERNERE
MEEN - FEEEEEREMEEN
A8t o

s TREEMEBRAITRERE R AKFF
R Tt T RFAERES -

2.5 FERMERY

o SFEFEEMBHLREE2007F1AYE
o B EEMEIR T AT FIEEME
B MEEEEMESTFREEMBER
4% o

e R2007F2A1MBAR + [SFREERMIER
e (BPESNZA IIEHERBTE
BUNTEERRTT

s SEEFREMBESEHAEEESHS
EES -

.AFEMERAE
o HBEEAMBSAFTHRIAFN2007F 117
24 BiANBRRKEEBEIHELEERERTT o

Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

1

.Annual Awards 2006 Committee

This year, 87 submissions were received for the Annual Awards
20086.

Annual Awards 2006 Press Conference will be held on 19 April 2007
at HKIA Premises at 3:00pm. The results of Annual Awards 2006 will
be announced by the President.

The Presentation and Exhibition Opening Ceremony will be held at
Main Concourse, One ifc from 20 April -24 April 2007. Details could
be found on HKIA website.

The Hon. Rafael Hui Si-yan, GBS, JP,Chief Secretary for
Administration of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government will be the Guest of Honour to officiate the ceremony

2. Young Architects’ Committee (YAC)

The result of Young Architects’ Award was announced in early
January 2007. Ms. Helen HO Kar Yan was awarded as a winner, and
Mr. Rex CHAN was awarded as the Honorable Mention.

The Design Workshop 1 of Young Architect Project Fund — STEP
project (Shower Talent Exclude Prejudice) was held on 11 Feburary
2007, Sunday at Hong Chi Pedal Café in Aberdeen.

Young Architects” Committee will have 4 activities in collaborate with
Joint professional institutes this year.

3. Annual Ball Committee

HK Country Club, Deep Water Bay has been confirmed for the
Annual Ball venue 2007 on 24 November, 2007, Saturday.

1-2. V-Walk for Volunteering organized by Agency for Volunteer Service (4 March 2007)

HBETIERR - ZLRFIE (2007F374H)
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4.100-Year of Architecture in Hong Kong Committee
¢ “Disappearing Hong Kong” photo trip was taken place in February
2007. The next trip will be held in April, June and August 2007 .

e The “In Love with Architecture” is free for collection at HKIA by
Members and Graduate Members.

e Book Signing party of “In Love with Architecture” will be held on 29
March 2007 (Thursday) at 6:30pm at HKIA Premises.

5. Media Resources and Publications Committee (MRP)
¢ The HKIA Annual Report 2006 will be produced in bilingual version.

e HKIA Directory of Architects Practice 2007 is to be completed in
mid-April.

6. Student & Graduate Members Committee
¢ New Members Welcoming Event will be held on 15 March 2007
(Thursday) at 7:00pm at HKIA Premises

7. Welfare & Activities Committee (WAC)

e A series of joint professional sports tournaments will be co-organized
by 5 professional institutes in 2007. Details will be announced on
the HKIA website later.
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The Second Quarterly General Meeting (13 June 2007)
BE_FFEXE (2007F6A13H)
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Board of Practices (BP)

1. Corporate Membership

e The Board has been spending much of its energies in the past
months in preparing for the Special General Meeting on the
introduction of Corporate Members, held on 31 May 2007.

¢ Over 150 members attended the SGM.

¢ 146 members adopted the proposed changes of the Rules in relation
to the introduction of the new membership.

2. Salary Survey
e 55 Member Practices participated in the survey.

e A study of the trend of salary of the architectural profession in the
past years will be conducted.

¢ The Board will be reviewing the HKIA hourly charge which has
remained unchanged since 1998.

3. Consultants Procurement
¢ Regular liaison with ArchSD on the following issues had been made:

- Resident Site Staff;

- Labour Relation Officer;

- Terms of Consultancy Agreement; and

- Proposed Formula Approach.

- Response on RSS and Proposed Formula Approach were made.

Consultation meeting would be escalated to include ETWB level if
necessary.

1-3. Adjudication Meeting for 100 Years Photo Competition on 14 April 2007 &5 B 258 2 /1 B S5 (20074645 14H)
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Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1.

Nominations

Ms. Corrin CHAN, Mr. Donald CHOI, Mr. Paul CHU, Mr. Alex LUI,
and Mr. Vincent NG were nominated to represent the Institute in
Hong Kong Urban Design Alliance, a joint taskforce of HKIA and
HKIP, in 2007.

Professor Edwin CHAN and Mr. Felix LOK were nominated to be
the representative and alternate representative respectively for
Conditions of Contract Subcommittee of ETWB.

Mr. Tony TANG was nominated to a Working Group on Administrative
Guidelines for Implementation of Phase One Prohibitions under
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance under the Construction
Workers Registration Authority (CWRA).

Mr. Michael CHIANG was nominated as advisor of Greening Master
Plan Committee of CEDD.

2. Presentations in Legislative Council
The Institute was invited by the Legislative Council to deliver views on

the following subjects :

further amendments to the draft revised Design Manual on Barrier
Free Access proposed by Buildings Department at the meeting of
LegCo Panel on Welfare Services on 12 March 2007 attended by
Clement CHU and Rembert LAL.

P2 road between Central and Wanchai at the meeting LegCo Panel
on Planning, Lands and Works on 7 May 2007 attended by lvan HO
and Freddie HAL.

reorganization of Government Secretariat at the meeting of LegCo
Panel on Constitutional Affairs on 26 May 2007 attended by KS
WONG.

1-2. Annual Awards 2006 — Press Conference on 19 April 2007 —ZEZE N4 4F 155 & (200744 H19H)
3. Community Development Committee Meeting on 2 April 2007 1% B /R Z 8 & &% (2007F4H2H)
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3. Queen’s Pier

Apart from presentations in the Legislative Council, BLA had taken a
series of actions on the preservation of the Queen’s Pier :

The Institute met the Government between March and April 2007 to
discuss on the feasibility in-situ preservation.

A press release reiterating the Institute’s position on the subject was
issued on 26 March 2007 .

The Institute reiterated the Institute’s position in the press meeting
hosted by Hon Patrick Lau after the LegCo Panel on Planning,
Lands and Works meeting on 27 March 2007.

The Institute issued a statement to LegCo Panel on Planning, Lands
and Works for tabling in its special meeting held on 23 April 2007.

A members’ opinion survey was conducted between 3 and 9 May
2007 to solicit members on preserving the Queen’s Pier.

A statement was presented in the public hearing of the Antiquities
Advisory Board on grading of the Queen’s Pier held on 9 May 2007.

A press release was issued welcoming the decision of AAB to grade
the Queen’s Pier as Grade | historic building at its meeting on 9 May
2007.

A letter was issued to the Antiquities Advisory Board on 11 May
2007 to request for launching the procedure for considering the
Queen’s Pier as historical monument and the grading for the
compound of the Edinburgh Place and the City Hall adjacent to the
Queen’s Pier.

The Government made a technical presentation on Queen’s Pier to
HKIA, HKIP, HKIS and HKILA on 18 May 2007 at HKIA, at which
HKIA members raised various alternatives for in-situ preservation of
the Queen’s Pier.

1. Community Development Committee Meeting on 2 April 2007 1t B EIEHEZ E € £ (200744 H2H)
2-3. Symposium on Bringing Architecture into our Education Architecture in History (21 April 2007)
Ao A o 22 | BEEBEHEERIEH G RELHM ERAE -EEZFFEL (2007F4H21H)
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4. Meeting with the Government / External Organizations
e A meeting with the Urban Renewal Authority was held on 3 May
2007 to discuss on recent URA consultation activities.

¢ A meeting with the Secretary for Housing, Planning and Lands was
held on 14 May 2007 .

5. Buildings Committee Website
e The Buildings Committee website was launched on 1 June 2007.

e [t is designed to provide a platform — Buildings Committee Forum to
facilitate members’ sharing on their views and experience on various
current buildings related issues. Please visit the website at http://
www.hkia.net/bc/.

6. Symposium on Bringing Architecture into Our Education

e The seminar series of the Symposium: Architecture into History,
Architecture into Geography and Architecture into Art were
successfully held on 21 April 2007, 5 May 2007 and 26 May 2007
respectively.

e The Symposium served as a starting point for setting up the platform
for architects and teachers to collaborate on the development of an
education kit for primary and secondary school students for learning
architecture and built environment of Hong Kong.

7. Other Events
¢ A heritage conservation seminar series was organized by Heritage
and Conservation Committee in May 2007:

- A CPD Seminar on Restoration Project of Embroidery Guild Hall at
Guangzhou was held on 7 May 2007. Experience on relocating a
historical guild hall by horizontal shifting the structure was shared
by the expert from Guangzhou.

- A CPD Seminar on Beyond the Fagade — The Conservation of
Singapore’s Built Heritage was held on 8 May 2007 .
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e A lecture on TRANS URBAN: Charting Experiments for Cities of the
Future delivered by Graduate School of Design of Harvard University
was held on 12 May 2007. The related exhibition was held between
12 May and 31 May 2007 at HKIA premises.

¢ A sharing session on technical issues related to development of new
cruise terminal at Kai Tak was held on 23 May 2007.

Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

1. Professional Assessment 2007
e Registration is open from now until 3 August 2007

e The 20+ sessions of Lecture & Seminar Series shall be held from
early August to end-October

e Paper 8 Case Study shall be in progress as soon as Registration
closes

e Written Papers shall be held during the 2nd and 3rd weeks of
December.

. CPD Events
22 in-house CPD events were held during January to 5 June 2007.

. Mandatory CPD 2006
It is encouraging that a total of 83.3% of members have submitted
their CPD Declaration Form for 2006 as at 19 May 2007.

4. Affiliates

* Announcement on target dates for admission of Affiliates and outline
of assessment details was made in late-May 2007. Publicity to
target groups is being made.

N

e W

e The target admission date is February 2008.

1-3. Symposium on Bringing Architecture into our Education Architecture in Art (26 May 2007)
[ e A o 25 | BEBEHEBEZEARE RELEHMBRE - (EEEF B (2007F5H26H)
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1.

Mutual Recognition Exercise 2007
Date: 25 — 28 June 2007

Place: Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, China
Quota: 60

No. of applications received by the institute: 107
List of candidates was announced on 11 May 2007

Briefing to candidates was held on 15 May

2. Visit by members living or residing in the Mainland

Date: 20 - 21 April 2007

22 members living or residing in the mainland visited the institute
and joined a series of activities.

Activities included forum on practice in Hong Kong, visit to a private
architectural firm, ArchSD, IFC, Annual Awards Prize Presentation
cum Exhibition Opening Ceremony and Exchange forum on small
residential apartment design.

The exchange was made a CPD event and attended by 20 members
living or residing in the mainland, and more than 10 members in
Hong Kong.

3.The Hong Kong Coalition of Professional Services

(HKCPS) Forum & Dinner in Celebration of the 10th
Anniversary of the HKSAR
Date: 12 July 2007

Venue: Hong Kong Convention & Exhibition Centre (Forum) & Grand
Hyatt Hong Kong (Dinner)

Senior officials of the Mainland Ministries and counterparts are
invited to share their insights on Development of the professions on
the mainland and Managing Professional Practice.

Members of the institute are welcomed to join.
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1

.Asia Cultural Co-operation Forum 2007 - Culture

Coming Home
Preparation of a symposium session “Living Urban Heritage”
organized by HKIA, HKIE, HKIS, HKIP and HKILA is underway.

The symposium will take place at the Drama Theatre of the Hong
Kong Academy for Performing Arts with admission free.

Registration details will be announced by early July 2007.

2.Overseas Excursion Committee

Two short tours are upcoming:

Kaiping (6-8 July) with 32 enrolments (20 members and 12
accompany persons)

Japan (11-15 July) with 18 enrolments (13 members and 5
accompany persons)

3. UIA and UIA Region IV “Architectural for All” Work Program

The Board was reviewing a UIA Vision & Strategies for 2006-2011
and would make some feedbacks to the UIA in general with respect
to HKIA's concerns.

The questionnaire of the Role of the Architect is being filled in at
UIA's request.

4. CAA/ARCASIA Committee and UIA Committee

The President Ronald LU and BEXA Deputy Chair Alexander LUSH
attended the CAA General Assembly and Conference to be held on
17-18 April 2007 in Melbourne, Australia.

1-3. Symposium on Bringing Architecture into Our Education Architecture into Geographic (5 May 2007)
[E e A o 25 | BEEHEBELREXE ELEHMBERAE - (EEEFHIE (20075 A5H)
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1.2006 A FEFRERTY 1. Annual Awards 2006 Committee
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Ceremony were successfully completed on 20 April 2007.

2.Young Architects’ Committee

This year, 3 submissions were received for the Young Architects
Project Fund 2007. No award will be made.

3. Welfare & Activities Committee

New Members’ Welcoming Party will be held tonight, 13 June 2007
at 7:00pm at Adrenaline, The Hong Kong Jockey Club.

HKIA won the First Runner up Medal at the Plate Final of Joint
Professional Basketball Competition on Sunday, 22 April 2007 (HKIA
vs. HKIS).

. Annual Dinner Committee
The American Western Theme of Annual Dinner 2007 is “THE WILD
WILD WEST”, to be held on 24 November 2007 at the Hong Kong
Country Club.

.100-Year of Architecture in Hong Kong Committee
6 submissions were received for the Photo Competition.

Award Presentation of the Photo Competition would be held on 13
June 2007 (today) at 2nd Quarter General Meeting.

The next photo trip to Lei Yue Mun will be held on this Saturday, 16
June 2007.

HKIA Football Team Group Photo on 2 April 2007 &/&ZERES S & XA (2007F4H2H)

2-3. Annual Awards 2006 Prize Presentation & Exhibition Opening Ceremony at Main Concourse, One ifc (20 April 2007)

RPRER 2 G5 — B8R — T NFF R REFHHAE (2007F4H20H)
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6. Media Resources and Publications Committee
e HKIA Directory of Architects Practices 2007 was delivered to
members in early May.

The HKIA Annual Report 2006 is being finalized.

7. Student & Graduate Members Committee
e Prospective Members Welcoming Event held on 15 March 2007 was
successful with positive response.

8. Quality Building Award 2008
e The President Ronald LU has confirmed his acceptance to be one of
the Honorary Advisors of Quality Building Award 2008.

1-3. Annual Awards 2006 Prize Presentation & Exhibition Opening Ceremony at Main Concourse, One ifc (20 April 2007)
RARBIR 2 B 5 — B8R T — S ENF R REHHE AL (2007F4H20H)
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Honorary Secretary's Quarterly Report 2007
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The Third Quarterly General Meeting (12 September 2007)
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1.

Corporate Membership
107 practices were elected as Corporate Members.

Various membership services have been launched, including e-mail
dispatch of practice information, organizing of local and overseas
exhibition participation, consultation on procurement matters, etc.

Various sub-committees have been proposed.

Corporate Membership Inauguration would be held on 13
September 2007 evening at HKIA

.Recommended Hourly Rate Review

The review by a special task group took into account the recent
salary survey results with adjustment.

3. Small Practices Committee

The publication SPARK was released in early-September 2007,
featuring works of 33 member practices.

4. Contract and Dispute Resolution Committee

A series of workshops for the training of Expert Witness have been
organized. Prominent practitioners of the field have been invited as
speakers of the courses.

Different contractual issues, including proposal of Security
of Payment legislation by HKCA, have been reviewed and
recommendation made.
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5.IT Committee

e The Committee is now planning on the promotional efforts of the use
of BIM in architectural projects, including promotions at the level of
education.

6. Consultant Procurement Committee

e ArchSD’s proposal on Stage Payment has been reviewed and a
counter-proposal has been made. The issue shall be discussed
further with ArchSD.

7. Architectural Specialization Committee

e A survey on the issue “Specialization” shall be conducted for the
general membership. Members are encouraged to reply to the
questionnaire and express their views on the issue.

Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1. Nominations

e Mr. Chan Chiu Ming was nominated to Environment, Transport and
Works Bureau for Taskforce on Construction Standards for Public
Works Projects (The Taskforce should now be under Development
Bureau after re-organization of Policy Bureaux of Government
Secretariat).

* Mr. Tsang Man Biu was re-nominated to serve in the Assessment
Criteria Committee for Voluntary Building Classification Scheme
being handled by the Hong Kong Housing Society.

e Mr. Michael Tsang Wai Yin was re-nominated to Buildings
Department for Advisory Committee on Barrier Free Access.

e Mr. Vincent Ng and Mr. Andy Leung were re-nominated to
Development Bureau for the regular representative and alternate
representative respectively to Harbourfront Enhancement
Committee.

1-3. New Members V\{e/coming Party and HKIA Certificate Presentation Ceremony 2007 (13 June 2007)
2007 E & BT R E B BEEME S FZEEE (2007F6H13H)
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2. Presentations in Legislative Council

* The Institute presented views on urban design study for the new
Central habourfront at the meeting of LegCo Subcommittee to
Review the Planning for the Central Waterfront (including Tamar Site)
on 28 June 2007.

3. Response to Local Affairs

e A press release was issued on 7 June 2007 in response to the
approval of funding allocation for dismantling and reassembling of
Queen’s Pier by LegCo Public Works Subcommittee at its meeting
on 23 May 2007.

e A paper containing the views of the development of new cruise
terminal at Kai Tak was submitted to Tourism Commission on 26
June 2007.

e The paper on urban design study for the new Central Harbourfront
was submitted to Planning Department on 29 June 2007 in
response to the public consultation launched by the Department.

e Views on the preservation of the open-air bazaar in Tai Yuen Street
and Cross Street in Wanchai was presented in a paper submitted
to the LegCo Subcommittee on Heritage Conservation on 26 July
2007.

4. Submission to Development Bureau

e A paper containing the Institute’s view on various subjects including
building quality built environment, improving public and development
process, mutual recognition of architect’s qualification between
Hong Kong and Mainland China, was submitted to the Secretary for
Development on 7 September 2007.

1-2. Dragon Boat Competition on 23 June 2007 EEA}HEEE (20074E6 H23H )

3. HKIA CPD Plant Visit: Camel Paint on 2 June 2007
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5. Mei Ho House Ideas Competition

e The Competition was coorganized by HKIA, HKIE, HKIS and HKIP,
sponsored by Hong Kong Housing Authority and Home Affairs
Bureau and supported by Shamshuipo District Council to invite
ideas on preserving Mei Ho House of Shek Kip Mei Estate from
professionals and the public. The Competition was launched on
28 June 2007 and submission for the Competition had closed on
31 August 2007. Adjudication for the Competition was held on
10 September 2007 and the results would be announced in due
course.

Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

1. HKIA/ARB Professional Assessment
e Registration for Professional Assessment 2007 closed on 3 August
2007. A total of 392 applications were received.

e The Second Professional Interview of Professional Assessment
would be held on 20 September 2007. 25 Candidates would be
interviewed by 5 panels of interviewers.

2. HKIA/ARB Lecture Seminar Series
e The 23-session Lecture & Seminar Series which is being conducted
during 3 August to 18 October 2007.

3. Enhancement of HKIA/ARB Professional Assessment

e Mr. C.C. Choi completed his review of the HKIA/ARB Professional
Assessment system and presented his recommendations on
enhancement, which are being deliberated upon for adoption.

1-2. CPD Seminar Sustainable Architecture Series - Introducing Environmental Integrated Design Process EIPD as a tool to achieve sustainability in

architectural projects on 5 June 2007

3. Council Election Forum on 30 August 2007 285318 (200748 H30H)




4. FESEEERRIDNE 4.CPD Event Highlights
e 200748 A28H * HProf. Eymen Homsi e The seminar given by Prof Eymen Homsi on “Calligraphy, Posture,
TEL (%Eiﬁra’j k- BREEREE | A and the Architecture of the Mosque” on 28 August 2007 was well-
TENTE RS EMED - received by Members.

e RZEEHHENAN\BEITHEBSREEM ¢ The Site Visit to Annual Awards Winning project — Stanley Complex
Be " TENEEEYESEREERE and Stanley Waterfront on 8 September 2007 was attended by over
EHFEGRAKRERAFEEE - £5100 100 members.

ZHEEHE ° 5.CPD Reciprocal Enrollment Fee

5. RS EENEEEEE ¢ As consented by Council, CPD enrollment fee is reciprocal for HKIA

o FIE @A O RER A K TS £ 5 i SR AT 2 Members to join CPD events of RAIA (International) & AIA(HK) and
gEFS B RERRENBL (FEHR) vioe versa.

MAE BEEEMEEEE2NZME 6. CPD Mandatory

BEE) - %%QWAATWH‘ ZNEE e CPD Committee is actively looking for ways to improve the existing
B2MEBeEsNKEKEESEeE 51 CPD Mandatory system.

Fle 7.HKIA Affiliates

6. EHMISESRERS * The Affiliates Briefing Session held on 20 July 2007 was attended by

e BEEERKRTES THERBRESEKILL 20 site supervisory staff and architectural technologists.

PARSE TR R H5 MR B SOE (2 Y 58 B 1 ) e Application period for Affiliate Assessment ended on 10 September
B 2007.
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1-2. Asia Cultural Co-operation Forum (ACCF) on 22-25 July 2007 g5l 3XX{E& tEimi8 (200747 H22-25H)
3. HKIA CPD Seminar Sustainable Architecture Series - Sustainability: its priority in architectural education programme on 31 July 2007
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1. Mutual Recognition of Architectural Qualifications with the
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Mainland 2007
The 4th exercise of the mutual recognition of architectural qualifications was
held in Nanjing during 25 — 28 June 2007.

58 HKIA Members attained the PRC Class | Registered Architect
Qualification, and 47 Mainland Registered Architects attained the HKIA
Member Qualification.

.HK Coalition of Professional Services Forum & Dinner in

Celebration of the 10th Anniversary of the HKSAR

To celebrate the 10th anniversary of the establishment of the HKSAR,
HKCPS organized a Forum & Dinner on 12 July 2007 at the Hong Kong
Convention & Exhibition Centre.

HKIA offered steadfast support to the endeavour, including Council Members’
participation in the Forum and reception of prominent guests from Ministry of
Construction and Architectural Society of China, including

- Mr. Wang Zao-sheng, Deputy Director General, Department of
Construction Market Administration, Ministry of Construction (MOC), China

- Mr. Wen Jing-chun, Division Director, General Administration Office, MOC,
China

- Mr. Song Chun-hua, President, The Architectural Society of China (ASC)
- Mr. Zhou Chang, Secretary General, The ASC

3.2007 Mainland and Hong Kong Construction Industry Forum
e Planning is underway for the “2007 Mainland and Hong Kong Construction

Industry Forum” organized by the Development Bureau and Ministry of
Construction.

e The forum and exhibition shall be held during 7-9 November 2007 in
Changsha, Hunan Province.

1-2. CPD Seminar: Texlon ETFE - Building Tomorrow on 6 July 2007
3. Excursion to Kaiping Tour (6-8 July 2007) f-FZ%& (200747 /6-8H)
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Board of External Affairs (BExA)

1

.Overseas Excursion Committee

The Finland & Russia Excursion Tour to be held during 22
September — 2 October 2007 shall be joined by 34 members and
non-members. The tea party was held on 5 September 2007.

The Kaiping Post-tour Tea Party held on 20 August 2007 was joined
by 25 participants. Ms. Selia Tan from Kaiping Diaclou Research
Department served as a guest speaker.

2.UIA and UIA Region IV “Architecture for All” Work

Program (WP)
UIA WP website was enhanced by addition of a new section named
“Award”.

Mr. Joseph Kwan would attend the UIA Region IV Meeting/ UIA
Region IV Work Programmes of Architecture for All, Heritage and
Sustainability on 14 September 2007 in Sri Lanka.

UIA Bureau and Finance Committee members will visit Hong Kong
on 13 October 2007 for sponsorship purpose. A cocktail reception
would be arranged for meeting with sponsors and patrons of UIA.

3. CAA/ARCASIA Committee

4 projects were short-listed for ARCASIA Award for Architectural
Excellence in Asia 2007-2008:

- Hong Kong Wetland Park Phase 2 (ArchSD)
- Tai Kok Tsui Municipal Services Building (Ronald Lu & Partners)

- New Headquarters for the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department (ArchSD)

- A Bridge too Far, A Dream Comes True (CUHK)




e BB LT EF20074F9A15HE17H - Dr. Ronald Lu would attend ARCASIA 28th Council Meeting
BITHE28ENEEMeREEe ek during 15-17 September 2007 and Professional Practice
REI4RKE - A% 20079158 217 Committee meeting on 15 September 2007. Ms. Anna Kwong
MEXEREZEe2E - BOALTEBE would attend ACAE meeting and Forum 14 during 14-19
E2007F9A14BE190BMHEEZ L E September 2007.
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Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

ABEEEE 1. Annual Dinner Committee 2007

1. AEREZRY ¢ The Annual Dinner 2007 shall be held on Saturday, 24 November

* 2007 FAFBEHE2007F 11 B24B 7830 2007 at the Lawn, Hong Kong Country Club, with cocktail starting
S (GAR) BAEMIELEIPH E i 2R - 7:30pm.

b7 Ny . AN
HEDEER L7 : 305 e Mrs. LAM CHENG Yuet-ngor, Carrie, shall act as Guest of Honour

s BRNATHRBNRRERRB M AR e Table reservation and sponsorship forms could be downloaded from

ﬁ$?$i ! {"FFJ%%%‘E&% °© HKIA website.
* ETEﬂgﬁjJ%%ﬂu%%%%%%%@W 2. Annual Awards Committee 2007
AT T e A kick-off meeting was scheduled on 30 August 2007. Key dates
2.2007BEFRERS for Nominations will be announced later.
o BREGHATN2007F8A30R - REEE 3. Welfare & Activities Committee
GRISRREVER Y VNG e New Members’ Welcoming Party was successfully held on 13 June
3. EAREHEES 2007 at Adrenaline, The Hong Kong Jockey Club.
e 200756 A138 KBNS EELES * The HKIA Football Team won the Bow! Final in All Professional Super
€ fAdrenalinefk H £ 1T o Cup 2007 on 8 July 2007.
e 2007 7ASH  BEEAMES RERKAE 4. Young Architect’s Committee
BEMBEOR T EAFEERTERT RS ¢ There was no award to be made for Young Architects Project Fund
THEARNEE 2007.
4. 5 FEBEMMEET ¢ Young Architects’ Award 2007 will be open for registration in early
* 2007 [EERHMEREE) BAEBE - October.
o BFBEMBBIL2007F10 ARBER R
% o

1. The Coalition of Professional Services — All Professional Super Cup 2007 on 8 July 2007
BEHEBE — HRY D 55 A F R X BB R (20077 F8H)
2-3. HKIA CPD Seminar - Sustainable Architecture Series - Urban Conservation of Hong Kong: Issues and Challenges on 9 July 2007




5.20085 % HiZ 18 5. Quality Building Award (QBA) 2008
o INHEFBESIRSE » WHENR2007E12A T~ ¢ |tis now open for nominations and will end in late December 2007.
AR °

EBLEEE® (HKIC) f2008FBEE &
SN EEE -
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1-3. 3rd Quarterly General Meeting on 13 September 2007 &/EZEMB S E =FFLF AL (2007F9H13H)

The Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers (HKICM) is the
Alternate Chair for QBA 2008.

For details, please click http://www.gba.com.hk/

Special Project - Hong Kong/Shenzhen Bi-city

Biennale of Urbanism and Architecture

.Background

Shenzhen hosted her debut presentation on Biennale of Urbanism
and Architecture in 2005.

It was the largest exhibition of its kind in the region which attracted
over 80 participating exhibitors, tens of thousands of visitors and
hundreds of journalists from around China and overseas to show
appreciation towards the contemporary developments of design,
architecture and urban planning of the city.

In 2007, HKIA was invited by Shenzhen Municipal Planning Bureau
to co-organize the biennale as a concept of “bi-city”.

2. Collaboration with SZ

The Biennale will include two concurrent exhibitions, one to be
initiated in Shenzhen and its counterpart in Hong Kong.

The Shenzhen part of the Biennale (“the Shenzhen Exhibition”) would
be overseen by the Shenzhen Municipal Planning Bureau and the
Hong Kong part of the Biennale (“the Hong Kong Exhibition”) would
be organized by the HKIA.

In December 2006, a Steering Group Committee chaired by Ms.
Alice Yeung was appointed by the Council to commence preparatory
works for the Hong Kong’s Exhibition.
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3. Site and Exhibition Period
e The Old Central Police Station Compound was secured by the
Lands Department as an exhibition site.

e The tentative exhibition period in Hong Kong is from January 2008
to March 2008.

4.Sponsors (as at 31 August 2007)
The Steering Committee is thankful to the following sponsors:

¢ Home Affairs Bureau, HKSARG, at HK$1M;
¢ Eric Cheng, individual donor, at HK$1M;
¢ The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, at HK$4.92M.

5. Curatorial Team
e |nvitation of Curator was launched in April 2007 and deadline of
return of curatorial proposals was 11 May 2007.

e A Selection Panel which was formed by the Steering Committee
Members conducted two rounds of interview with 8 potential
curatorial teams in May and June 2007 at HKIA premises.

e By consensus, the Steering Committee agreed to appoint Mr. Wang
Weijen, Associate Professor of HKU, as the Curator of the biennale.

6. Call for Exhibitors
e Call for Exhibitors exercise was launched in early July 2007.

e The Curatorial Team is now reviewing and studying the submissions
and will invite potential exhibitors further discussion.

7.Academic Exchanges Activities

e The Shenzhen Counterparts takes lead to set up an Academic
Exchange Committee for the Biennale for which Mr. Rocco Yim,
Professor Bernard Lim and Mr. Raymond Fung are the HKIA’s
representatives.

8. Enquiry
® Please email to hk-sz.biennale@hkia.net

Bernard Hui 57318 FHKIA & 822024 Fe 8
Honorary Secretary &#HWER
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Board of Practices (BP)

1. Corporate Membership

e Since the announcement of the new membership at the beginning
of 2007, and after various consultations and finally adopting the
related Rules in Special General Meeting, the Institute now has
more than 130 Corporate Members and more than 10 architectural
practices (sole proprietors/partnership) agreed to join the activities of
Corporate Membership.

e With more applications coming in and some applications at the
processing stage, the prospective number of Corporate Members at
the beginning of 2008 shall be above 150.

e The Board of Practices 2008 shall be formed by representatives from
these Corporate Members firms.

e New Committees shall be formed to better serve our member
practices

2. Corporate Sponsors Scheme
e Corporate Sponsors scheme was introduced in September.

e We now have 13 Corporate Sponsors which are from different
sectors of the building industry.

3.IT Committee

e The Committee is working on the Corporate Membership website,
which will help to promote the works and services of the Corporate
Members.

e Virtual exhibition of projects by Corporate Members is being
considered.

e . —
e ———
5 ';utnqo‘r E
ﬂ LSS g

B | LEL

1-2. HKIA Corporate Membership Inauguration on13 September 2007 & /#2522 E N a1 B #IRE) %= (2007495 13H)
3. HKIA CPD Site Visit: Stanley Complex and Stanley Waterfront on 1 September 2007
EERFMNECFBERREERER - FRETBAEREKE2007F9F1H)
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4. Contract and Dispute Resolution Committee
e The CPD workshop: Architect as Expert Witness was held with
success. Over 50 members attended the 5-lecture series workshop.

¢ An information list of these participants will be kept at the secretariat
for future reference.

5. Small Practices Committee

¢ The publication SPARK shall be officially launched in the evening
of 12 December 2007 during the Corporate Members Christmas
gathering.

6. Consultants Procurement Committee
e The Committee has been working on the liaison with different
governmental departments on procurement issues.

e A communication meeting among ArchSD, Development Bureau,
AAP, and HKIA shall be held on 6 December 2007.

Board of Local Affairs (BLA)

1. Nominations
e Mr Donald Choi was nominated to Construction Industry Council for
representation in Construction Industry Training Board of CIC.

e Mr Lam Wo Hei was nominated to Development Bureau for
representation in Construction Industry Council.

e Prof Hon Patrick Lau was nominated to Tourism Commission
for serving as independent advisor to Tender Assessment Panel
for development of new cruise terminal at Kai Tak in his personal
capacity.

1-2. Tea Party for Excursion to Finland and Russia on 5 September 2007 %558 J ff 2 B £ 22 B2 & (20079 A5H)
3. Joint Professional Table Tennis Tournament on 9 September 2007
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2. Presentation in Legislative Council

e The Institute presented views on the recommendations for West
Kowloon Cultural District development to the LegCo Subcommittee
on West Kowloon Cultural District Development at its meeting held
on 23 October 2007.

3. Response to Local Affairs
e The Institute issued the following letters to deliver views on the
following subjects :

- to Urban Renewal Authority on conserving the street hawker
bazaar at Peel Street / Graham Street on 5 September 2007;

- to Antiquities Advisory Board to request for reassessment of
heritage grading for Wanchai Market on 24 September 2007;

- to Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau on the public
consultation on the Green Paper on Constitutional
Development on 9 October 2007;

- to Tourism Commission on the revised parameters of the new
cruise terminal development at Kai Tai on 10 October 2007; and

- to the LegCo Subcommittee on West Kowloon Cultural District
Development on the recommendations for WKCD development
on 22 October 2007.

e The Institute also delivered views on the following subjects in
consultation forums and briefing sessions :

- Preliminary architectural design and thematic conceptual
framework for Hong Kong Planning and Infrastructure
Exhibition Gallery on 11 October 2007;

- recommendations for WKCD development on 17 October 2007;

- focus group meeting on heritage conservation on 23 October,
2007;

1. Joint Professional Table Tennis Tournament on 9 September 2007

2-3. UIA Patron Sponsor Dinner on 13 October 2007




- 200710 A25 HEE RRE SR T2/ - proposed improvement works for Tai O facelift on 25 October
gHRREER - 2007;
- 200711 ASH AN BERERERXELE - proposed development of a piazza at Tsim Sha Tsui on 8
& HEHSE - November 2007; and
- 200711 11BN EERERRET - on Central Kowloon Route on 11 November 2007.
53 4. West Kowloon Cultural District Taskforce
4. FFhEBEEH ¢ In response to public consultation on the recommendations for
o AR EATIE2007E90 A EENFEAERE WKCD development launched in September 2007 and in view of
AL, DA RESEEA the scale of this development project of Hong Kong, the Institute set
EeNFAE10AKT THE jLEEEEE ;LA up the West Kowloon Cultural District Taskforce in October 2007 to
=] N =T AW
BEFmAREED S EEEAAR follow up on various matters concerning WKCD development, with
2y =S

BEEMETEA o Mr LUI Chun Wan Alex to be the Convenor of the Taskforce.

5. ERERBEHBABATHEEES 5. Sharing Sgsgion with Secretary for Development .

¢ The Institute invited the Secretary for Development, Mrs Carrie Lam,
JP, to have a sharing session with HKIA members on 30 October
2007. The Secretary for Development presented the scope of
work of Development Bureau and the initiatives of the Bureau in

e
* 2007F10A30H  BEREMEBSEET
LRBEEMBABATHIHEHRSES

@%Q}ﬁ@: ABRBENERERRELIF the 2007-08 Policy Address and Policy Agenda. HKIA members
%ﬁﬁ%&%&ﬁa% %EO?%OS?EHE@&%&E also shared their views and concerns on aspects including heritage
BEAETNIERR - QREF - £ conservation, development of West Kowloon Cultural District
SRR EELXYRE  BAREER - Development, Tai O, enhancement of the harbourfront, mode of
BHEXRAHRTLRE - BLBE - RERR public engagement for major development projects.
BIBEXNERE  MNBRREELLH . o .
S o 6. Sustainable Building Regional Conference 2007 Hong
Kong
6. 20075 B & 8 0] 15 45 1 o B i vh =1 B e The Sustainable Building Regional Conference 2007 Hong Kong
2 organized by Hong Kong Professional Green Building Council
e 2007FE12A3E BB BIRIREEEXE S was successfully held between 3 and 5 December 2007. HKIA,
@R IHERII2007EEE B 0] AR EY being one of the founding members of PGBC, participated in the
MRS 2o AR ERIREEEES organization of the Conference.

SRIERE  RETORGHEABNIE-

1-2. HKIA Sharing Session with CUHK Architecture Freshmen on 24 October 2007
EBEEE e 8 B HEEP NAEEER AL ZE (2007F10H24H)
3. Forum on Tai O Facelift on 25 October 2007
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= y -~ 7. Sustainable Architecture Student Project Award 2007
ERFTAE  BNRARBHENEERS
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Architecture Student Project Award 2007 for honouring outstanding
student design studio projects. The Award was launched in
September 2007 and a shortlisting exercise was conducted in
November 2007. 6 students were selected to enter into the
second stage of the Award to deliver presentations and to receive
enquiries in an open judging session held in Sustainable Building
Regional Conference 2007 Hong Kong on 3 December 2007.
Prize presentation ceremony for the winners of the undergraduate
category and graduate category were held in SBO7 Hong Kong
Conference.

.Ideas Competition for Mei Ho House of Shek Kip Mei
Estate
The prize presentation ceremony and launch of the exhibition for
Ideas Competition for Mei Ho House of Shek Kip Mei Estate was
scheduled for 17 December 2007. An exhibition would be held at
Hong Kong City Hall between 17 and 21 December 2007 and at
Hong Kong Cultural Centre between 7 and 13 January 2008.

1-2. Post Tour Tea Party for Excursion to Finland and Russia on 29 October 2007 Z5 % (R 7 47 % 5X[@jk 15 55 & (20074 10H29H)
3. HKIA Sharing Session with HKU Architecture Freshmen on 3 October 2007 &8 242 e S 8 HE B A LZEXFEH S Z2(2007F10H3H)
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Board of Educational Affairs (BEdA)

1. Mandatory CPD 2006 members achievement
e There were in total 2283 (91% of total membership) fulfilled the
CPD requirement.

2064 members (82% of total membership) completed more than
25 hours which is the minimum CPD requirement.

2.CPD Event Highlights
HKIA CPD Seminar on Mexican Architectures presented by Mr.
Francisco Serrano was well-received by members.

3. HKIA/ARB Professional Assessment 2007
¢ Modification of schedule of Design Paper 7 —

Paper 7a — 18 December 2007 (4:00pm — 6:00pm)
Paper 7b — 19 December 2007 (9:00am — 5:00pm)

e Timetable of written papers

10 Dec 2007 (Mon) 9:00 - 12:00 Paper 1

11 Dec 2007 (Tue) 9:00 - 1:00 Paper 2

12 Dec 2007 (Wed) 9:00 - 10:30 Paper 3

12 Dec 2007 (Wed) 11:15-12:45 Paper 4

12 Dec 2007 (Wed) 2:30 - 4:00 Paper 5

18 Dec 2007 (Tue) 9:00 - 1:00 Paper 6

18 Dec 2007 (Tue) 4:00 - 6:00 Paper 7a

19 Dec 2007 (Wed) 9:00 - 5:00 Paper 7b

1 Mar 2007 (Sat) Release of results (written papers)

1-2. HKIA CPD Seminar — Architect as Expert Witness on 1 November 2007
3. Special General Meeting on 5 November 2007 455X & (2007%1155H)




4. F_REFEK 4.2nd Professional Interview
e 2006 F ERBEEMEBEY RELEMGAMB HKIA/ARB Professional Assessment 2006 - Second Professional

EERT—F - NEEBSA D R2007F98 Interview was held on 20 September 2007 at Baptist Church and 19
0B EEREEEERT - 25@AEAEBT A out of 25 candidates passed the interview.
1ofERBE . - 5. Affiliate HKIA Assessment
5. BB e B Al e As at the close of application, 21 applications were received.
o MEHHE® B 0STE; B 0 AR A H U F Applicants are required to submit their technical reports by 5
2B EREE - BEEABR 200712 A58 (£ December 2007 (Wednesday).
B =) AR Rl s - e Workshop and written assessment will be held on 19 January 2008
o THEHRBSRIEHN20085E1 A198 (1) (Saturday) while interview will be held on 26 January 2008 (Saturday).
#8217 MERBIF20084E1 A26 8 (£H1X) 6.HKIA 50th Anniversary - Workshop of Research on
B17 - “Qualities of Future Architects”
Workshop by Leslie Lu and Christopher Law was conducted on 13
6. MeeE deED-
?ﬁﬁ; giﬁ};gﬁgﬂi F;ﬁi%:m {gﬁjﬂ T October 2007 (Saturday) to present initial research findings. The
e i workshop was attended by 21 representatives from HKU, CUHK,
CityU, IVE, HKU Space and allied professional institutes as well as

* 2007F10H1BR BT THEEREMES

HKIA members.
I TAFEESz— "RREEREM
FrEEEMIEH TIEY  mEee8E 7. Revalidation of local schools
MR FNZE R T S AR BIA N 48 1) 2 KO e Bachelor of Arts in Architectural Studies and Master of Architecture
ZeaE B o N2 N T e A 21 (B A i & programmes of the Department of Architecture, The University of
FHREEARaIEEEAE . Flh vk Hong Kong, were re-validated for 5 years from 23 November 2007.
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s FEABNEREVE L NEEBFELR
EaRAZghkEEMAMEEREESR
EHETE  RTFHO7TF11A23B BER
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1-2. Zhongshan Study Tour (10-11 November 2007) 11| — ;T FI% £/ (200711 H10-11H)
3. HK-Shenzhen Biennale HK Exhibition Press Launch on 19 November 2007 & &-F |4 i\ i SE &  F R0 £ & (2007411 H19H)
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Board of Mainland Affairs (BMA)

1.

Mutual Recognition Exercised 2007

The PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification Certificate
Presentation Ceremony was held during Annual Dinner on 24
November 2007 .

Mr. XIU Lu, Director of the Practice Qualification Registration Centre
of MOC, presented certificates to HKIA Members who passed the
exercise in 2007.

2. President and Secretary General of ASC visited HK’s

public housing projects

On 25 November, Mr. SONG Chunhua, President of ASC, and Mr.
ZHOU Chang, Secretary General of ASC, visited 2 HK’s public
housing projects, namely the Kwai Chung Estate Redevelopment
project and Shek Kip Mei Estate.

3.2007 Mainland and Hong Kong Construction Industry

Forum

The Development Bureau and Ministry of Construction Annual
Conference was held during 7-9 November 2007 in Changsha City,
Hunan Province.

As a guest speaker of the forum, President made a presentation
entitled “Hong Kong’s Urban Form: Past, Present & Future”

. HKIA CPD Site Visit in Shanghai

A half-day CPD site visit was held on 8 December in Shanghai.
Projects visited are The Knowledge & Innovation Centre (KIC), and
1933 Slaughterhouse.

The visit is the first of its kind organized by the Liaison Committee of
the Board of Mainland Affairs for HKIA Members working, living or
visiting Shanghai.

-
- gt em i i ,;—,\]gij;-m =g
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1.8 EREER 1 Overseas Excursion Committee
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The Committee would send out Expressions of Interests to members
in Janurday 08 for their preferred places for excursion tours in 2008.

The production of the record of the Finland and Russia Excursion
Tour is underway.

.UIA & UIA Region IV “Architecture for All” Work

Programme (WP) Committees

With only one company to sponsor the UIA WP website, the
committee will review the need for future sponsorship invitations. In
any event, the future sponsorship rate should be set at a level that
covers the secretariat administration fees.

Mr. Derek Kwan has been appointed as the new Chairman of
the committee, with effect from January 2008. Ms. Rosman Wai
remains as the Deputy Chairlady.

The four categories of UIA Prizes would be publicized on the HKIA
website to invite nominations from members. Any nomination for the
UIA Gold Medal would be recommended to the Council by the UIA
Committee.

HKIA hosted a dinner at the Dynasty Club on 1 December with the
UIA President, ExCo Member Mr. Victor Lo, and Dr. Ronald Lu, Prof.
Bernard Lim and Mr. Joseph Kwan of HKIA.

1-2. HKIA Annual Dinner on 24 November 2007 & /&#SEE 2 HFIEE (2007F11H5H)
3. HKIA Annual General Meeting on 12 December 2007 &8/ ME S HFEAE (2007F12H12H)
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3. CAA/ARCASIA Committee

e Mr. Stephen Ho from the Housing Authority was appointed as the
Chairman of CAA/ ARCASIA Committee. New members to join the
committee for 2008 will be sought.

e Qut of four short listed projects, the following two projects were
recommended for Honorary Mention/Jury Special Award in the
ARCASIA Award for Architectural Excellence for Asia 2007-2008:

- Honorary Mention - New Headquarters for the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department (Mr. C.H. Yue, JP/ ArchSD)

- Jury Special Award - A Bridge too Far, A Dream Comes True
(Prof. Edward Ng/ CUHK)

The Award presentation ceremony will be held in the 13th Asian
Congress of Architects (ACA) during 27 October to 1 November 2008
in Busan, Korea.

Board of Internal Affairs (BIA)

1. Annual Dinner Committee
e HKIA Annual Dinner was successfully finished on Saturday, 24 Nov
2007 at the Lawn, Hong Kong Country Club.

2. Young Architects Committee
e 22 young members have registered for Young Architect’s Award
2007. Submission deadline was 03 December 2007 .

¢ Joint young professional study tour to Zhongshan was finished on
November 10-11, 2007.

| T

1-2. HKIA Annual General Meeting on 12 December 2007 & /&2 E 2 HFAE (2007F12H12H)
3. Young Architects Award Final Jury Meeting on 13 December 2007
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3. Annual Awards Committee

Annual Awards 2007 has been launched in November and the
submission deadline would be on 5 January 2008

The Honourable Mr. TANG Ying Yen, Henry, GBS, JP, Chief Secretary
for Administration of HKSAR has confirmed to accept our invitation
to be a Guest of Honor for the Award Presentation & Exhibition
Opening Ceremony on 25 April 2008.

. Student & Graduate Members Committee

HKIA Sharing session with Architecture Freshmen at the University
of Hong Kong & the Chinese University of Hong Kong was held in
October 2007.

. 100-Year of Architecture in Hong Kong Committee

The last photo trip to Hollywood was successfully completed on 13
October 2007 (Saturday).

Photo exhibition will be held at Mido Café in Yau Ma Tei in 2008.

. Media Resources & Publication Committee

To better address environmental concerns, starting from 2008,
only a small number of printed copies of HKIA publications will be
available for members’ collection at HKIA Premises while stock last.

.House Committee
Renovation work will be started from February-April, 2008 at HKIA
Premises.

1-2. Guangzhou delegation visited to HKIA on 6 December 2007 EJNA X B, &8 2 EMB S (2007F12H6H)
Shenzhen-HK Biennale of Urbanism and Architecture - Shenzhen Exhibition Opening on 8 December 2007
BBRYE L E W EFIR - RYIREF#H1E (2007F12H8 H)
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http://szbiennale.mindward.net/

Special Project - Hong Kong/Shenzhen Biennale of

Urbanism and Architecture

.HK Exhibition’s Press Launch at the Central Police

Station, 19 November 2007

The Hong Kong Exhibition’s Press Launching was held in the
afternoon of 19 Nov 2007 at the Old Central Police Station. The
Hong Kong Steering Committee and the Curatorial Team Members,
representatives of HKIA, HKIP, HKDA and sponsors, together with
about 20 friends of media attended the Press Launch.

For the photos and press release, please click:

http://www.hkia.net/news_content.php?id=5312&news_type=230

2. HK Exhibition’s Opening Ceremony, 9 Jan 2008

The Hong Kong Exhibition’s Opening Ceremony will be scheduled
for 9 January 2008 at the Old Central Police Station. The HKSAR
Chief Executive Donald TSANG, Shenzhen Deputy Mayor YAN
Xiaopei and HKJC Chairman John CHAN confirmed to be the
Officiating Guests. Tentative programme rundown was sent to the
Chief Executive’s office for information and arrangement.

3. Shenzhen Exhibition’s Opening Ceremony,

8 December 2007

A coach was arranged for the Hong Kong delegates composed
of the Hong Kong Steering Committee and the Curatorial Team
Members, representatives of HKIA, HKIP, HKDA and sponsors,
as well as local press and media who were joining the Shenzhen
Exhibition’s Opening Ceremony in the afternoon of 8 December
2007.

Website of Shenzhen’s Exhibition:

http://szbiennale.mindward.net/

1-3. Shenzhen-HK Biennale of Urbanism and Architecture - Shenzhen Exhibition Opening on 8 December 2007
EVB- R TS IR - RYIR B F#42 (20071278 H)
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4. Media Relations

e The Steering Committee has appointed Octagon as the PR
Consultant to work with the Curator for the media plan so as to
enhance the exposure of biennale.

5. Confirmed Exhibitors
e Number of confirmed local exhibitors: 40

e Number of confirmed overseas exhibitors: 25

6. Website of Hong Kong’s Exhibition

http://www.hkszbiennale.asia
(to be launched on 12 December 2007)

7. Enquiry
e Sam Yu of HKIA Secretariat: 2805 7286

e Bobo Lee of Curatorial Office: 2975 8986
e Miranda Kwok of PR Octagon: 2534 5005

¢ Please email to hk-sz.biennale@hkia.net

Bernard Hui 57318 FHKIA & 822024 Fe 8
Honorary Secretary 5 WER
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The Hong Kong Institute of Architects —

Financial Statement 2007/

2007FREBERMNBSHIFHRE

COUNCIL'S REPORT

The Council have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Group and of the Institute for the year
ended 31st March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Institute are holding of meetings, lectures,
examinations, exhibitions and competitions and similar activities.

The activities of the subsidiary are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2007 are set out
in the consolidated income and expenditure account on page 6 of the
annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Institute during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in reserves
on page 7 of the annual report and note 18 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Institute during the year are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements.

COUNCIL AND OFFICE BEARERS
The council and office bearers of the Institute during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Dr. Lu Yuen Cheung, Ronald (President) (elected on 1st January 2007)
Ms. Chan Ching Ying, Elizabeth (Vice President)

Mr. Lam Kwong Ki, Dominic (Vice President)

(elected on 1st January 2007)
(elected on 1st January 2007)

Mrs. Mo Chu Kwok Wah (Honorary Treasurer)
Mr. Hui Man Bock, Bernard (Honorary Secretary)
Mr. Chi Wuh Cherng, Daniel (Council Member)
Mr. Chow Sai Hung, Ronald (Council Member)
Mr. Christopher David Gabriel (Council Member)
Mr. Ho Man Yiu, Ivan (Council Member)

Mr. Lam Ping Hong, Robert (Council Member)
Mr. Lee Hung Wai, Wilson (Council Member)

Mr. Lok Man Fai, Felix (Council Member)

Mr. Lush Alexander (Council Member)

Mr. Tang Wai Man, Tony (Council Member)

Mr. Wong Ching Long, Jerome (Council Member)
Mr. Wong Kam Sing (Council Member)

Ms. Kwong Sum Yee, Anna (Council Member)
Ms. Sun Polly (Council Member)

Ms. Yeung Lai Fong, Alice (Council Member)

(elected on 1st January 2007)
(elected on 1st January 2007)

(elected on 1st January 2007)

(elected on 1st January 2007)

(elected on 1st January 2007)

(elected on 1st January 2007)
(elected on 1st January 2007)

(elected on 1st January 2007)

(elected on 1st January 2007)
(elected on 1st January 2007)

Prof. Lim Wan Fung, Bernard (Immediate Past President)
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HONORARY AUDITORS
The honorary auditors of the Institute during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Mr. Lee King Fun, Andrew
Mr. Poon Sing Chi, Stephen

COUNCIL’S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No contracts of significance to which the Institute or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a council of the Institute had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Institute or any of its subsidiaries were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Katon CPA Limited who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Council

Lu Yuen Cheung, Ronald ATk
President& &

Hong Kong, &%

12th September 2007 —ZZ+F N A+ =H
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STATEMENT BY THE HONORARY AUDITORS TO
THE MEMBERS OF

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS
(Registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects
Incorporation Ordinance)

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of the Hong
Kong Institute of Architects together with the Council’s and the Auditor's
reports for the year ended 31st March 2007 and confirm that, in
accordance with the Rule 48 of “The Rules of the Institute”, we approve
the financial statements and reports referred to above.

f .

Lee King Fun, Andrew Z= 8 B 5¢ 4
Honorary Auditor 35 75+ &1k

G Lo

Poon Sing Chi, Stephen J&#ERESL 4
Honorary Auditor 25 #51% StEm

Hong Kong, 12th September 2007 &8 '+ —ZTZ+F N A+=H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

(Registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation
Ordinance)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong
Kong Institute of Architects (the “Institute”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 6 to 29, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2007,
and the consolidated income and expenditure account, the consolidated
statement of changes in reserves and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Council’s responsibility for the financial statements

The council of the Institute are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit, and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Rule 64 of “The Rules of the Institute”, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the institute’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the institute’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Qualified Opinion

Because of the absence of audited accounts of the associates, the
Group had not adopted the equity method of accounting for the
associates as required by “Investments in associates” (HKAS 28). The
financial effects of this departure could not be quantified.

Except for the matters set out above, in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs
of the Institute and of the Group as at 31st March 2007 and of the
Group's deficit and cash flows for the year then ended.

QA a7

Katon CPA Limited 45 & 5tAT{T AR A A

Certified Public Accountants i 2 & 1Al

Hong Kong,12th September 2007 &% - —EZ+FNA+—H
Lee Kit Wah Z=ft%E

Practising Certificate number P1453 $1 3£ B £ 4w 5% P1453
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS &H##E B

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT %&&
 Z_ T F-A-F+—HILFE

2007 2006
Notes iz HKS & HKS$ A%
Turnover Z&%F 4 15,773,722 11,728,080
Costs AR
Functions costs J&EIAL AR 5 (9,529,593) (5,516,554)
Lecture and examination costs ;&5 & & s A (792,239) (338,380)
Publication costs FI#IA A (1,671,148)  (147,043)
Gross profit 7 3,780,742 5,726,103
Other revenue E KA 4 736,923 416,100
Less iii: Employment costs 18K 6 (2,990,372) (2,787,446)
Other operating and administrative expenses EAth &% & 1T X H 8 (3,130,594) (2,828,892)
Operating (deficit)/surplus before taxation BREi RIS (&518) / &bk (1,603,301) 525,865
Taxation #il&
Hong Kong profits tax & 58 9 (24,864) (19,090)
Deferred taxation #ELEFIE 9 (2,376) (3,787)

Operating (deficit)/surplus after taxation Bi{£4&E% (E548) / Bbs (1,630,541) 502,988




THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS &H##E B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES #& g%
 Z_ T F-A-F+—HILFE

General  Revaluation Accumulated
reserves reserves surplus Total

—MR i Eh#E RIEBR st

HKS &1 HKS &1 HKS &1 HK$ /&%

Balance at 31st March 2005 XA =FFAF=H=+—H 899,953 0 22,943,043 23,842,996
Loss on available-for-sale investments AJ & 2 & &8 0 (51,710) 0 (51,710)
Net surplus for the year FE % &tk 0 0 502,988 502,988
Balance at 31st March 2006 X =FF~E=H=+—H 899,953 (561,710) 23,446,031 24,294,274
Transfer to surplus or deficit on #1284 / BB 2

on sales of available-for-sale investments AI{ft Hi & 2 & H & 0 (32,259) 0 (32,259)
Gain on available-for-sale investments AJ & 7 % & Iz 0 75,007 0 75,007
Net deficit for the year & & %518 0 0 (1,630,541) (1,630,541)

Balance at 31st March 2007 R=FFtF£=A=+—H 899,953 (8,962) 21,815,490 22,706,481




THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS H##E B

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #&&1 =
AS AT 31ST MARCH 20078 =22+ F A+ —HILFF

2007 2006
Notes Bff#E HKS$ i HKS$ i HKS

ASSETS &&

Non-current assets JEFREN S E

Property, plant and equipment ¥13 - BE &% 11 4,199,323 4,071,384

Available-for-sale investments A] fit it & 2 8 & 14 5,491,039 7,669,599

9,690,362 11,740,983

Current assets R ENEE

Inventories - finished goods 77 & — 2/ M 38,682 259,230

Trade and other receivables & BR 7 EL4th FE UL X 15 4,943,098 3,667,927

Bank and cash balances 817 XI5 & 4584 16 9,345,765 10,442,886
14,327,545 14,370,043

TOTAL ASSETS &E4EE 24,017,907 26,111,026

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES &R & &
Members’ funds EE &%

General reserves —f& & & 17 899,953 899,953
Revaluation reserves E (A (8,962) (51,710)
Accumulated surplus 2f& & 21,815,490 23,446,031

22,706,481 24,294,274

Non-current liabilities JEGEN & &

Obligations under finance leases Bt EHE A & 19 45,266 79,390
Deferred taxation #EIEFIE 20 37,839 35,463
83,105 114,853

Current liabilities R Ei & {&

Other payables EAh &3k 21 1,201,656 1,672,105
Obligations under finance leases Bt EHE A& 19 20,892 25,070
Tax payable FEZITIIA 5,773 4,724

1,228,321 1,701,899

TOTAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES {#{& Rk B E8%E 24,017,907 26,111,026

Approved by the Council on 12th September 2007 lREER=ZZtFNA T+ _HHESELBEE -

Lu Yuen Cheung, Ronald & JT#f Mo Chu Kwok Wah ERBE
President @ & Honorary Treasurer #5815 &




THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS &H##E B

BALANCE SHEET AS % =
AT 31ST MARCH 2007 &&= —Z 2+ F - A=+ —HILFE
2007 2006

Notes Hff#E HKS & HKS & HKS$ A%
ASSETS &&
Non-current assets JEFRENEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥13 - BE &% 11 505,690 362,620
Investments in subsidiary KB R 7 AIRE 12 2 2
Available-for-sale investments A & 2 & 14 5,491,039 7,669,599

5,996,731 8,032,221

Current assets R ENEE

Inventories - finished goods 7 & —5EA & 38,682 259,230
Trade and other receivables J& U8R 708 £ A & U3t 15 4,913,120 3,621,449
Amount due from subsidiary Fi &2 7] fEf &2 B R0E 12 1,508,957 1,517,012
Bank and cash balances $£17 &3R8 & &5 84 16 8,090,934 9,363,593

14,551,693 14,761,284

TOTAL ASSETS EEE 20,548,424 22,793,505

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES {5 & & {&
Members’ funds EE& %

General reserves — & 17 899,953 899,953
Revaluation reserves B (A 18 (8,962) (51,710)
Accumulated surplus 2718 &4 18 18,463,719 20,244,597

19,354,710 21,092,840

Non-current liabilities JEGEN & {&

Obligations under finance leases Bt EHE A & 19 45,266 79,390
Current liabilities i #) & &

Other payables £t fE T2k 21 1,127,556 1,596,205
Obligations under finance leases Bt & E A & 19 20,892 25,070

1,148,448 1,621,275

TOTAL RESERVES AND LIABILITIES % ® & {54828 20,548,424 22,793,505

Approved by the Council on 12th September 2007 8RB ER —TT R F+— A+ B HESSRA o

Lu Yuen Cheung, Ronald & JT#f Mo Chu Kwok Wah ER Bz
President @ & Honorary Treasurer 5815 &




THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS &H##E B

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &R & RS
 Z_ T F-A-F+—HILFE

2007 2006
HKS$ i HKS 7

Operating activities 48458}

Cash (used in)/from operations [Note 22] &% /E8) (FT#E) / FAIBBREFisk—+=) (3,292,702) 1,872,667
Income tax paid FiIE X (23,815) (25,564)
Interest paid %83 (3,038) (3,788)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities &%&8) (FifE) / FiSRLFHE (3,319,555) 1,843,315
Investing activities 12 & & E)

Interest received & W F & 362,424 261,782

Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale investments & At & 2 & Wz 2,300,000 0

Purchases of property, plant and equipment B8 E %% - = &% (401,688) (306,056)

Purchases of available-for-sale investments & & a] {ft 1 & 2 1% & 0 (5,500,000)
Net cash from/(used) in investing activities IR &;FENFE / (FiiE) IR&FE 12,260,736 (5,544,274)
Financing activities & &)

Obligations under finance leases Bt EHE A & 0 125,352

Repayments of obligations under finance leases Bt & FHE B EEX (38,302) (34,972)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities B &8 (FifE) / FiRIR&RE (38,302) ¢ 90,380
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR& RIRE&Z{HIEH B $iE (1,097,121)  (3,610,579)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year E#ZIR & RIREZ{H 10,442,886 14,053,465
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year & ZIR& RIS ZE(E 9,345,765 10,442,886

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents $R1TRIF & 465

Bank and cash balances 817 & IR & 4564 9,345,765 10,442,886




1. GENERAL

The Institute is registered under the Hong Kong Institute of Architects Incorporation Ordinance for the general advancement of Civil
Architecture and for promoting and facilitating the acquisition of the knowledge of the various Arts and Sciences connected therewith.

The principal activities of the Institute are holding of meetings, lectures, examinations, exhibitions and competitions and similar activi-
ties.

The activities of the subsidiary are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

The address of its registered office is 19/F., 1 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”s),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”s) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are either effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1st January 2007. The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results for the current or prior accounting
periods are prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following Standards and Interpretations issued by Hong Kong Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures

HK(FRIC) - INT 7 Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
HK(IFRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - INT 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment

HK(IFRIC) - INT 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and treasury share transactions

The council of the Institute anticipate that the application of the above Standards and Interpretations will have no material impact on
the results and financial position of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the principal accounting policies set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Institute and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income and expenditure account
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

(b) Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries, in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are companies in which the Institute, directly or indirectly, hold
more than half of the issued share capital, or controls more than half of the voting power, or controls the composition of the board of
directors.

In the Institute’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment loss.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Institute on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the balance sheet
date.
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(c) Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

Investments in associates are stated at cost less any identified impairment losses. The results of associates are accounted for on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

The equity method of accounting for the associates is not adopted as the accounts of associates are not available.

(d) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 25%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where
shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

(e) Investment properties

Investment properties, which are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation, are stated at their fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

On disposal of investment properties, the gain or loss is directly recognise in profit or loss.
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(f) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when the Group become a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate
allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group has the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity (held-to-maturity
debt securities) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect
irrecoverable amounts. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the investment’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the investment’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as either investments held for trading or as available-for-sale, and
are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Where securities are held for trading purposes, gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are included in profit or loss for the period. For available-for-sale investments, gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is included in the profit or loss for the period. Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss for equity investments classified as available -for-sale are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as available-for-sale are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of
borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

(9) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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(h) Inventories

Inventories consist mainly of standard contract forms, Standard Form of Building Contract, Form of Tender which are stated at the
lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes direct costs of purchases and incidental costs in bringing the inventory to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on anticipated selling price less all further costs to be incurred prior to
sale.

(i) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over thelease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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(j) Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

(k) Revenue recognition
i)  Members’ entrance and subscription fees are recognised to the extent of cash received. Annual subscription fees are accrued
on a time basis.

ii) Lecture and examination fees are recognised when the lecture and the examination are held.

i) Revenue from sales of publications and advertisement is recognised when the publications are sold and advertisements are
published.

iv) Revenue from exhibitions and other functions are recognised when the exhibitions and the functions are held.

v) Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

vi) Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.
vii) Sales of securities are recognised when the sale agreement becomes unconditional.

vii) Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

() Taxation

The Institute has been granted exemption from Hong Kong Profits Tax by the Inland Revenue Department for its excess of income
over expenditure in prior years. The Council believes that the exemptions will continue to be granted accordingly no provision for
Profits Tax has been made.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit of the Institute’s sibsidiaries for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income and expenditure because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.

(m) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position
of each entity are expressed in Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the Institute, and the presentation currency for
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or
loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in
equity.
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For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations (including
comparatives) are expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense
items (including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising,if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

(n) Government grants
A government grant is recognised as other revenue, when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching with it and the right to receive is established.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate.

(o) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals
or other entities.

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Pension obligations
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans, including the mandatory provident fund as required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in the income and expenditure account as incurred.

(ii) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(n) BAFHHED

BT BN Al B IR B AN R B RE T & MY B ikt R ak ST WRERAE R - RERR A E AU A o

B A B B BUTEE) - R ERIEA TS E MEMRAFTE BHEAEL - WHIBERERALR -

(o) FEANL

MAREHRERME - WAEBBRENEEZEXERIZFHE AL B ALIHRUBEELERRIELEATE (R2IFR) @ A&
BES—ATZE—ZEHHE—EAFE  WEATHHEREAERERFHE -

(p) EEEFI
(i) BAREFRE
REERFENRE (BFEEE CEFEIBEETEEN) IEEZBHERTES) 2EHATREEARUTEEREBIRPHE

(i) EEFEERHA
EEHFRZESN  EEEERZTERER - AEEAHZAEB IMEBEBREZRBNEENFRZ(GTEEELEE -

REZRBRRERGTMERER E2EBELAKRBAL




4. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE £ 35 R E il A\

Group A% E
2007 2006
HKS &1 HK$ & #&

Turnover & %%

Members’ subscription and entrance fees @ B2 @& EH XA G & 4,862,780 4,351,685
Functions income [Note 5] /&8 A (8% F ) 7,384,479 4,814,633
Lecture and examination fees Z & B EREHE A 2,749,210 2,192,295
Rental income from investment property % & #12 2 #& A 198,000 195,400
Sales of Architects Practices Directory f25RAT E AT 2 ML E 361,000 27,000
Sales of publications and advertisements ENfll & K& E & 5 E 218,253 147,067

156,773,722 11,728,080

Other revenue H s\

Arbitrators % & 12,000 28,000
Bank interest income #R477 WA 177,862 169,645
HKIA credit card rebate commissions &/ 22 K (= A REH 61,442 60,636
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment &2 - BiE MR IETE 2 K 0 11,448
Interest income on certificates of deposit 77 FXEE I FI B U A 184,562 92,137
Realised gain on available-for-sale investment 7] it i1 & 7 #$ B B Uz 78,692 0
Rental income of display space R34 U A 135,370 0
Sales of souvenirs 422 miH & 16,986 3,220
Sundry income FIEUA 70,009 51,014

736,923 416,100




5. FUNCTIONS INCOME AND COSTS &t A R EH

Receipts and expenses relating to various functions held during the year were as follows: -

RERNBITZIREDNRARERAT : Group A"&
Income U AExpenses Bt 2007 2006
HKS &% HKS &% HKS &% HKS &
50th Anniversary ARCASIA Cocktail Reception
DM e A TRAEEE 0 (51,305) (51,305) 0
50th Anniversary Celebration L+ EFESEE 456,680 (805,684) (349,004) (143,028)
50th Anniversary Exhibition 1+ B4 E & 129,000 (782,815) (653,815) 0
Academic Exchange Zi132 7% 0 (10,000) (10,000) (49,584)
Academic Qualification Assessment £ & F T2 12,000 0 12,000 0
A Century of Hong Kong Architecture &8 B G125 128,108 (76,205) 51,903 (13,575)
Architecture Centre & ) 2,532 (106,372) (103,840) (326,739)
Architecture Tour B 295,950 (119,234) 176,716 239,523
Arcasia Student Jamboree 2004 5 EZEANH € Student Jamboree 2004 0 0 0 (11,824)
Annual Award [E4 4818
2004 80 0 80 146,608
2005 333,390 (249,168) 84,222 0
2006 12,450 (9,500) 2,950 0
Annual Ball AF &g 0 0 0 900
Annual Dinner AF & 1,586 0 1,586 (64,007)
Annual Golf Day AF = BAEkH
2005 61,465 (27,000) 34,465 20,635
2006 676,750 (281,983) 394,767 0
APEC Architects 58 K48 & 4B 4% 22 Z2RD 3,000 (12,590) (9,590) (52,272)
ARCASIA function S5 RS EED
2005 0 0 0 (12,940)
2006 0 (49,599) (49,599) 0
Asia Cultural Co-operation Forum 35031t & 1E:m 18 210,324 (202,490) 7,834 0
Best Paper Award B {Eqm X 82 0 (6,390) (6,390) (4,290)
Building Committee ZEEHIZE & 0 0 0 (7,925)
Community Development Committee (t REAEIEREE S 0 (554) (554) (1,833)
Central Police Station Project FIRZZEIEH 0 0 0 (2,755)
Coallition of Professional Services &5 R ¥t 4 0 0 0 (2,793)
Coutesy Visit #RahE
- Beijing 16 60,537 (79,862) (19,325) (13,464)
- Guangzhou E/M 37,988 (56,784) (18,796) 0
CPD - Seminars and Events 8 SZ %R — B EREE) 80,930 (46,958) 33,972 11,585
CUHK Visitation Board 2005 2005 F&BHRNXAEIREE S 0 0 0 (483)
Delegation Visit s B &K B
- Guangzhou EM 4,430 (17,251) (12,821) 0
- Shenzhen 7| 1,500 0 1,500 (7,412)
Dragon Boat and others B8 & E At/ EED 0 (66,084) (66,084) (48,852)
Environment & Sustainable Development 3235 & Al 35 /E 2% R 0 (59,200) (59,200) 0
Gala Night BE 2 & 665,010 (933,536) (268,526) 0
General Activity — &S 9,000 (46,729) (37,729) (33,041)
Green Tour 42 &%
2005 8,990 (21,469) (12,479) 19,445
2007 110,474 (107,945) 2,529 0
Heritage and Conservation £ & & ERE 0 0 0 (605)
HKIAVHKIE/HKIS Joint Conference &S iEERE S / BETIZMEE / BEAEMBEH SR
2004 0 0 0 (15,811)
2005 0 0 0 (10,000)
c/f hEERS & 3,302,174  (4,226,707) (924,533) (384,537)




5. FUNCTIONS INCOME AND COSTS (continued) ;EEIWMARER (&)

Group A5 E
Income U AExpenses Bt 2007 2006
HKS &% HKS B HKS &% HK$ B

b/f #4%8#HE] 3,302,174  (4,226,707) (924,533) (384,537)
HKIA Cocktail Reception at AIA Pacific Crossing

HBEERMEER AIA Pacific Crossing®R17 2 /Bg 77,500 (180,658) (103,158) 0
HK and Shanghai Conference &82 Ei§& 3 0 0 0 (13,429)
Joint Institute Career Expo Bt & B ¥ EE S 0 (6,508) (6,508) 0
Joint New Building Contract Bt & T4 4 0 0 0 (28,561)
Kai Tak Urban Design Competition BR{&Ik T & 5HHL B 0 (132,039) (132,039) 0
Mainland and Hong Kong Conference 2005
At} & 742005 F & % 0 0 0 (9,981)
Mainland Exhibition i & 0 (3,450) (3,450) (60,000)
Mainland membership dinner Rt & 8= 0 (1,731) (1,731) (5,249)
Mutual Recognition with Mainland Mttt B & & E R

2005 0 0 0 116,334

2006 333,650 (259,196) 74,454 0
My Heart My Home 152 # K 0 (48,250) (48,250) (46,570)
New Member Welcoming Event $T& 8 :i037/E8) 0 (18,795) (18,795) 0
Official trips to Mainland for meetings M &2 &l 0 (18,252) (18,252) 0
Overseas Excursion /E9NE R E

2006 Los Angeles & Chicago 2006 G825 M2 hnef 384,685 (471,612) (86,927) 0
Professional Induction Workshop ZRERUE I 101,700 (16,590) 85,110 0
Quality Building Awards 2004 2004 F{EZZE A 0 (9,600) (9,600) (169,653)
SARS Competition SAG I Z BT LL & 0 0 0 (4,905)
Shanghai Visit /&35 0 0 0 6,540
Shunde Training Course IB/Z 553 3E 0 0 0 (260)
Student Medal BB ZEAMNE G4 HBE 52 0 (39,682) (39,682) 0
Tao Ho Fund Exhibition A3 & &R E 0 (10,499) (10,499) 0
UIA BIBZEERD &

International competition - BIFR L & —

“Celebration of Cities” 0 0 0 (8,030)

Overseas Meeting /85N & 3% 0 (43,314) (43,314) (91,508)

Web Site Launching #8530 0 (5,200) (5,200) 0

Work Programme - Architecture for All [& AZEE | T{E/\E 0 (32,545) (32,545) (37,353)

Venice Biennale Architecture 2006 2006 S EHT R L EFE 2,505,500 (3,086,026) (580,526) 0
Venice Biennale 2006 2006 & E T ER

Response Exhibition [2] f& & 660,000 (900,377) (240,377) 0
WACA Conference tt i A ZEMP S S 6,720 0 6,720 20,185
West Kowloon Cultural District Development
BBENBEUREME 0 0 0 (3,301)
YAAS FREMEEE
2021 Emerging Hong Kong Young Architects Publication 12,550 0 12,550 39,960
Young Architects Awards & 4F 2R 48

2004 0 0 0 (1,200)

2005 0 0 0 (11,324)

2006 0 (1,511) (1,511) 0
Young Architect Project Fund FHZEMBEES 0 (17,051) (17,051) (9,079)

7,384,479 (9,529,593) (2,145,114)  (701,921)




6. EMPLOYMENT COSTS ER &

Salaries and allowances #r& Mi28L

Provision for unused annual leave 7 F & (R &
Provident fund contribution 38F& & 5k
Personnel costs & TAZAK

7. COUNCILS’ REMUNERATION EEiil£

Group A% [E
2007 2006
HKS & HKS &t
2,757,322 2,654,141
98,243 3,853
128,335 125,041
6,472 4,411
2,990,372 2,787,446

No remuneration was paid or payable to the Council in respect of their services to the Group during the year
REBERERIBENFARAEBRENRS M AEED N HENE -
(2006 : Nil). (ZZZARF : T)




8. OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES H{h& & R{TH X H

Advertising SE &

Air conditioning charges ZEFAF X

Auditors’ remuneration ¥z StEfE &

Bank charges and credit card commission 178 FA & {=H~HE&E
Books and magazines &5k %

Building management fee AEEEE

Business registration fee B ¥t &

Cleaning /82 &

Computer upgrade and support T+ 4% & 37 18

Congress expenses [Note 10] @55 (Fisg+)

Consultancy fees EAf &

Courier expenses i#iIE £

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #13 « E &R IEITE
Education and career expo expenses H A LB X B TSR
Electricity and telephone E& M B % &

Finance lease interest g & HEF &

Insurance R

Legal and professional fees J&7 & B E A

Penalty izt

Postage, printing and stationery E8%& - ENfl| & X &

Quarterly general meeting and working meeting expenses ZE A€ Kk TE@ =B
Realised loss on investment securities & &5 0 &R E1E

Rent and rates & & Z 40

Repairs and maintenance #1& & (R&

Sponsorship Z8h &

Subscriptions to professional bodies ¥ ig & &

Sundry expenses &

Survey and research & K5

Website programming, IT support and upgrading 482 « 1T B R AR

Group A& E
2007 2006
HK$ 7B HK$/&
4,044 17,942
81,881 104,107
42,000 32,000
108,670 94,710
53,767 50,266
155,878 161,757
5,200 5,200
1,340 11,678
0 804
109,054 38,855
0 9,818
80,792 60,473
256,687 186,673
71,206 102,361
76,895 58,301
3,038 3,788
107,159 104,689
58,448 48,527
868 0
722,646 668,456
195,724 254,625
0 730
549,281 497,854
29,145 41,217
56,160 7,500
123,305 105,556
44,329 32,536
157,764 67,210
35,313 61,359
3,130,594 2,828,892




9. TAXATION #i18

Group A% &
2007 2006
HKS &1 HKS &

The tax credit/(charge) comprises: FiIB# D / (FEXH) B23F -

Hong Kong profits tax & & FI158

Current year A EE (24,864) (19,090)
Deferred tax credit/(charge) [Note 20] iEEFL BRI BRE / () (Migg=+) (2,376) (3,787)

(27,240) (22,877)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2006 : 17.5%) on estimated assessable profits for the year.
BBENSB DR AFEMATRRTRTIZ 17.5% (ZTTRF : 17.5%) 518 °

The tax credit/(charge) for the year can be reconciled to the operating surplus/(deficit) before taxation per the consolidated income and
expenditure account as follows:

FEZRBRED /) (BEXH) BRaRARIHERZGHAIEERS/ (BR) HEROT :

Group A& E

2007 2006

HKS A% HKS &%

Operating surplus/(deficit) before taxation Rt AT & @R %/ (EE) (1,603,301) 525,865
Tax credit/(charge) of Hong Kong Profit Tax rate of 17.5% (2006 : 17.5%)

WIEELE / (BIEXH) - BBMEHRE 17.5% (ZFRF : 17.5%) 280,579 (82,977)

Tax effect of non-assessable revenues T~ &AL A HO 5 765 22 28 4,826 1,832

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TEHIE S KT IS/ 2 (991) (87)

Effect of zero tax rate of tax exempted institution R F B R T R £ (311,654) 58,355

Tax credit/(charge) for the year FFEF{BE R / (FHEXH) (27,240) (22,877)

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 20. ¥EERIE 7 S B NMFE =1 -




10. CONGRESS EXPENSES %X

APEC Meeting in Tokyo B R as K& A LS 3
APEC Meeting in Mexico City 2Faa[ i A& A MBS
APEC Meeting in San Francisco = & mis K& A AL S5
Beijing office 1t Rt =5
Coalition Beijing visit Bt & 1t 5 e E
Meeting in Guangzhou EM &%
HKSARG Delegation to the 2nd Pan-Pearl River Delta meeting in Chengdu
BEARITHREBRNE —HRI-ANESRE Kiles
2006 Mainland and Hong Kong conference on 2006 & At & &%
Urban Infrastructure Development and Construction Market Regulation
[T B R pE R R AR LM ISR E M
HKSAR Mission to Guangxi B8 RITTHE EfRE R E
Others EAth &%

The 10th China Japan Korea Registered Architects Organizations Meeting at Hangzhou

FtEh AETMREMEgRE (He)

The 10th anniversary of the Practice Qual. Reg. Centre at Peking £+ /@i &R EMP 0 bR E:3%)
UIA round table in Paris BIBS 2Tt e R E R e%

Group A& &
2007 2006
HK$ B#¥  HKS$ B%
0 17,221
13,721 0
26,616 0
30,798 0
0 12,206
0 1,068
0 4,313
12,782 0
6,500 0
450 1,762
6,538 0
11,649 0
0 2,285
109,054 38,855




11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT #1% + & Rk 6

Group A& H Furniture,
fixtures,
Investment Leasehold and office
property improvements equipment Total
REWME HERETR KM RE #Et
SE N

HK$ & HK$ &1 HK$ &1 HKS &

Cost or valuation EEZIS'S?.THE

At 31st March 2006 RZZEZE~F=A=+—H 3,650,000 2,059,043 1,246,633 6,955,676
Additions RNE 0 243,164 158,524 401,688

Written off 3544 0 0 (17,062) (17,062)

At 31st March 2007 RZZEZE+HF=A=+—H 3,650,000 2,302,207 1,388,095 7,340,302

Accumulated depreciation B &

At 31st March 2006 R—ZEZE NF=A=+—H 0 1,957,573 926,719 2,884,292
Charge for the year FFE 5 H 0 81,812 174,875 256,687
At 31st March 2007 A=EZE+E=HA=+—H 0 2,039,385 1,101,594 3,140,979

Net book value or carrying amount BREFE S R E(E
At 31st March 2007 R—ZEZ+F=F=+—H 3,650,000 262,822 286,501 4,199,323

At 31st March 2006 R F=H=+—H 3,650,000 101,470 319,914 4,071,384

The Group’s interests in investment property at their carrying amount are analysed as follows:
REBEREMENERTREESNAT - 2007 2006
HKS &1 HK$E

In Hong Kong held on: REBH#A :
Leases of over 50 years A+ A S 3,650,000 3,650,000

The Group’s investment property is held for rental purposes under operating leases.

AEERBAREYR - BNARKEEROURES -

The property was first revalued on 30th September 1993 on an open market value basis, by Prudential Surveyors International Limited,
an independent professional property valuer. The surplus arose on valuation of this investment property amounted to HK$8,697,185
was credited to revaluation reserve.

ZYERNE—RER  BYEEAFETARTERATNR—NN=ZFNA=Z+TRARARMEEELETEMR - RBEREMEMGERN
EERNZBBTE 8,697,185 JLE AT AEMFHE ©

The second revaluation was carried out on 30th September 1998 by the Council’s representation. The surplus arose on valuation of
this investment property amounted to HK$2,616,833 was credited to revaluation reserve.

FREEHEFERRN-NANN\FLA=TBEL - EREEVEGLEMELNRLER 2,616,833 TR AEMRE °

The third revaluation was carried out on 30th September 2001 on an open market value basis, by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional property valuer. The deficit arose on valuation of this investment property amounted to HK$7,896,000 was
debited to revaluation reserve.

F=REM T HIB BEBIETENTT Debenham Tie Leung LimitedR —ZZT—F N A=+ BIRARMEREETER - REREYE
HEFTELMEBRAY 7,896,000 LB B EHRFEEBET MR




11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) $1% « i R34 (&)

The forth revaluation was carried out on 30th September 2003 on an open market value basis, by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional property valuer. The surplus arose on valuation of this investment property amounted to HK$100,000 was
credited to revaluation reserve.

EI R E G Ty B B BI5TAI7T Debenham Tie Leung Limited R = ZEZE=F N B =+ BIR AT EEEEITER - 2BREME
BB FTEERNBHERE 100,000 TTEFTAEMEEE

The latest revaluation was carried out on 25th November 2004 on an open market value basis, by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional property valuer. The surplus arose on valuation of this investment property amounted to HK$1,150,000 was
credited to revaluation reserve.

—IREG TR BEAIFHEITT Debenham Tie Leung Limited R =T ZTWFE+— A -+ A HEARMEEEETEMN - RER
BYEGEFELENRBEY 1,150,000 TTEFTAE MRS

Institute ZNE& Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold and office

improvements equipment Total

HEREIR K- EKE #Et

P& N
HKS$ i HK$ &k HKS &

Cost B A&

At 31st March 2006 R=—ZEZF=A=+—8 1,991,443 1,231,928 3,223,371
Additions RE 243,164 158,524 401,688
Written off E$5 0 (17,062) (17,062)
At 31st March 2007 R=ZZ+F=A=+—H 2,234,607 1,373,390 3,607,997

Accumulated depreciation %?ﬁ?ﬁ%

At 31st March 2006 R=—EZF=HA=+—H 1,942,293 918,458 2,860,751
Charge for the year FFE X H 68,292 173,264 241,556
At 31st March 2007 R=EZE+F=HA=+—H 2,010,585 1,091,722 3,102,307

Net book value BREE{E
At 31st March 2007 R—ZEZ+F=H=+—H 224,022 281,668 505,690

At 31st March 2006 R—ZEZEXF=A=+—H 49,150 313,470 362,620




12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY XMl BATIRIRE

Institute A"Z2&
2007 2006
HKS &t HKS &t

Unlisted shares, at cost & _EMR&D + AR 2 2
Amount due from subsidiary F{ &2 7] FEf &£ B FIE 1,508,957 1,517,012

1,508,959 1,617,014

The amount is interest free, unsecured and without fixed repayment terms.

FZHEREEER - WEREHR R TRETEERFHS -

The council consider that the carrying amount due from subsidiary approximates their fair value.
BEeRAMBRARRNEERBENREE - BEQFEELD -

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31st March 2007 are as follows:

MEARN _ZTLF=A=1+—HNFBENAT :

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of Nature of

Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital equity held business
L) NG R FEM A SZ BT FrAEsS E3d
Hh2E 15 Bt HE

HKIA Services Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares 100% Investment
of HK$1 each holding

ERREMBERBERLDA i 2 B AR R
FREEITT BrE

13. ASSOCIATED COMPANY B AT

The associated company, Professional Green Building Council Limited, is a company incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies
Ordinance with limited liability by guarantee. It’s principal activities are conducting collaborative research and public research results

on local and global developments of green building, organizing researches seminars and training courses in green building design and
technology and advising the government on the formulation, setting up and monitoring of a local green building labelling scheme.

B nm - IRREEEXZGARAE - RREBEATEE - UBERAIXESEIMRLNBEREERR] » FEXKEDERAM
RERGERENERETEEMAERAXARER - BREBEECEEYRANRMOAREASG KIFIIRE - ARKR ME
EARMAR B REEYRERTE - MBUTRERES




14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS ot H &£ 215 &

Beginning of the year %]

Additions RE

Disposals H%&

Revaluation surplus/(deficit) transfer to equity B iz 2 BB Es: / (E518)

End of the year &

Available-for-sale investments include the followings: AJ & 2R & BIETIEE ¢

Unlisted investments, at fair value: 3F F R E A&
Certificates of deposits - Hong Kong 7 ##& — &8

Group & Institute A& @ & AR E &
2007 2006
HKS BH HKS B

7,669,599 5,722,039

0 5,500,000
(2,253,567)  (3,500,730)
75,007 (51,710)

5,491,039 7,669,599

Group & Institute AN B AR E &
2007 2006
HKS A% HKS &%

5,491,039 7,669,599




15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES & 5 & & {th FEU =k

Group A5 E Institute NE2&
2007 2006 2007 2006
HKS 71 HKS &t HKS & HKS$ B#
Account receivables JEUE 5 8RR 4,098,891 2,764,673 4,087,341 2,736,623
Interest receivable and prepayments FEWF B & T8 1418 B 387,714 751,067 387,714 751,067
Deposits paid and other receivables B 1% & K £ FEUBR FX 456,493 152,187 438,065 133,759

4,943,098 3,667,927 4,913,120 3,621,449

The council consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

BEeRn B REMEKARNREEREAHERS

16. BANK AND CASH BALANCES fRITRIRE 463

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and the Institute and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.
RITEBEIRSBREAEBRAZGNTFRRE - ARHMRAIAER=MEAFZARNZEHREBERE - 2EEENREER
NHERE °




17. GENERAL RESERVES —f&{itts &

Group & Institute ZN&E B K AE &
2007 2006
HKS B HKS B

Balance of donation for Radio Television Hong Kong programs production
BFAREELH B RIEBIER 456,897 456,897

HKIA Funds for Public Conferences, Seminars & Exhibitions in 1996
1996 FIEAR SR - BHAE - EBCZANBEREMBeES 200,000 200,000

Donation for Public Conference, Seminar, Exhibition,Research and Competition

NBEE  Hig  RE  HRIHLEBK 150,000 150,000
Balance of donation from Mr. Dennis Lau Wing Kwong in 1994 19944 248 & St A 18706458 67,248 67,248
Balance of donation from Mr. Stephen Poon in 1995 1995 /& EE S £ 5 2805 25,808 25,808

899,953 899,953




18. RESERVES {1

Institute <&

Balance at 31st March 2006 R=ZEZHF =/ =+—H

Loss on available-for-sale investments AJ it & 2 % & E518

Net surplus for the year iR % & 64

Balance at 31st March 2006 R=ZEZ R F=F=+—H

Transfer to surplus or deficit on sales of available-for-sale investments
EIRM BERZAHLEZRENE

Gain on available-for-sale investments 7] H & 7 & & U zs
Net deficit for the year & F 518

Balance at 31st March 2007 R—ZEZ+HF=F=+—H

Revaluation Accumulated

reserves surplus
Bih#E 2R
HKS &1 HKS B
0 19,859,427
(51,710) 0
0 385,170
(51,710) 20,244,597
(32,259) 0
75,007 0

0 (1,780,878)

(8,962) 18,463,719




19. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES piZfiE& &

Minimum lease Present value of minimum
Group & Institute N R ANEg payments lease payments
=K SEHASTR
e R BIRE
2007 2006 2007 2006

HKS i HKS$ i HKS$ i HKS &

Amounts payable under finance leases: BiEHE A EE NERMF

Within one year —F & 23,880 28,656 20,892 25,070

In the second to fifth years inclusive A5 —FEFERFRN 51,740 90,744 45,266 79,390
75,620 119,400 66,158 104,460

Less il : Future finance charges KRR @& & /A (9,462) (14,940) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations fHE & &R (& 66,158 104,460 66,158 104,460

Less i © Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current liabilities)
TZEARNFRARIE (RBEE TR ZRE) (20,892) (25,070)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months
+ =& A AEIHZIA 45,266 79,390

During the year, the Group had entered into certain transactions in acquiring furniture, fixtures and office equipment under finance
leases. The lease terms implicit in the leases are 4 to 5 years. At the balance sheet date, the borrowing rate was 3% (2006 : 3%) per
annum. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date, and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

EARFE AEEERETRARM RERPAERENR S  BRLABEWMNEEFHRNERSF -NEER BEFNXAE
F3% (ZEZRF :3%) NEEGHBHEE  ARAEERAFENXER -

All' lease obligations are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

FIEAIRT BRIE &R - WEMSAES NG - IEHEEAENEHESR -

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.

AEEMHEAEEERMERS

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the lease assets.

AEENREREABHRHNEAHEEEENFEELRR -




20. DEFERRED TAXATION iE3E$i1E

The following table shows the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
year:

TRINGABRE PR LBEREFEMER T BZRERREER (RE) ERED

Group A& & Accelerated tax
depreciation

IRFRIEE

HK$ &8

At 31st March 2005 R=—EZER&E=H=+—H (31,676)
Credited/(Charged) to income expenditure account #A / (@) WA RSz & (3,787)
At 31st March 2006 R —EZEE=H=+—H (35,463)
Credited/(Charged) to income expenditure account #A / (@) WA RSz & (2,376)

At 31st March 2007 A =FFt&=A=+—H (37,839)




21. OTHER PAYABLES H{hf&{+2x

Group A& Institute ANE2&

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$ it HKS &t HKS & HKS$ B#

Deposits and receipts in advance &% Kk FEUR A 607,246 847,777 607,246 847,777
Accruals and other payable fE&T1E B & E AL FERTBR SR 594,410 824,328 520,310 748,428
1,201,656 1,672,105 1,127,556 1,596,205

The council consider that the carrying amount of other payables approximates their fair value.

BEEERA - HMENRNREERX FERE
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22. NOTES ON THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT IR &2 RMEE

Reconciliation of net operation (deficit)/surplus to net cash (used in)/from operating activities.

FEE (BR) /BRELSERY () /ASHRSRHFREK -

Operating (deficit)/surplus %48 (E518) / B

Adjustments for FHFEIER :
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #1% - BiE MR EITE
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment &Y% - BRE K& E < W
Realised gain on available-for-sale investment 7] it 1 & 7 # 8 B B Uz
Property, plant and equipment written off ¥1% « BE K :& a1 o
Interest paid 2172
Interest received B W FIE

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital &8 & B & EHRSRE
(Increase)/Decrease in assets: E& (3ghn) /p 4

Investment securities & & &5

Inventories 17 &

Trade and other receivables & 5 5 £ fth & U 3¢

Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities: BEEE®M/ OFd)
Other payables E bR

Cash (used in)/from operations &8 (Fr#E) /FTi53H<E

Group A5
2007 2006
HKS 8% HKS B
(1,603,301) 525,865
256,687 186,673
0 (11,448)
(78,692) 0
17,062 0
3,038 3,788
(362,424)  (261,782)
(1,767,630) 443,096
0 3,513,249
220,548 75,382
(1,275,171)  (1,897,625)
(470,449)  (261,435)
(3,292,702) 1,872,667
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23. LEASE COMMITMENTS FH497%1&
The Group and the Institute as a lessee A& B R AN S EAEEA

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Institute had commitments for future minimum lease payments in respect of rented
premises under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
REER - AARIRIBZIAEEEEYENTAIBUEC EEBA) - ANRRKEE SR - ERBWT :

Group &lnstitute N & @ AN &
2007 2006
HKS B HKS B

Within one year —4F A 1,239,969 1,015,764
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE —FE2FAFER 333,126 1,185,058

1,673,095 2,200,822

The Group as a lessor AEBEAHFEAA

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:
BEAEH  REAKERBEFPRITZHELY - ERRKERESMNRZERRNT
Group &A% E
2007 2006
HKS B HK$ &8

Within one year —%F A 198,000 198,000
In the second to fifth years inclusive R —FEFRFERN 21,450 219,450

219,450 417,450
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES AR EIEHERBIE

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, bank and cash balances,
obligations under finance leases and other payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management man-
ages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEETZSRTARRARLEZRE - BREESRANEMBYGK - RITHER - MERENEBREMENERR - 252/ T
AFBERENERE 2SR TAMRERKEEEERRFINT - ERETYEEMERMEHELR - NEREERER
HEITEE R -

Credit risk {5 & k&
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables in the balance sheet represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets. No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

AEEMAZZBHNEESHEENTAGERR  REERERAIINE S MAMRYGRZREE - S REE - WER
HEXNEERR -

nBEENEERBRAR RS~ RERTSEENRIRT

Interest rate risk F1J2 & B&
The Group has no significant exposure to interest rate risks as the Group did not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its inter-
est rate risk.

AEEYEMBEAFERS  AAAKEYERERITESBRTE - LEIRHEREE

Foreign currency risk 5N & &
The Group has no significant foreign currency risk due to limited foreign currency transactions.
REBEWEREHEAIINE R - ARINEZSHER °

Liquidity risk i 81 & /& b
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

AEENBRENERBAIMBHMNRSESRE - BREFEANRSHE  mEEREBLERMNRSESRE -
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HKIA Services Limited — Financial Statement 2007/
2007 FEEBREEMBZIRIFBIR L FIFHRE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2007 are set
out in the income statement on page 5 of the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company during the year are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Ms. Kwong Sum Yee, Anna (resigned on 1st January 2007)
Mr. Lim Wan Fung, Bernard Vincent  (resigned on 1st January 2007)
Mr. Ng Wing Shun, Anthony Vincent  (resigned on 1st January 2007)
Mr. Hui Man Bock, Bernard (appointed on 1st January 2007)
Mr. Lu Yuen Cheung, Ronald (appointed on 1st January 2007)
Mr. Lam Kwong Ki (appointed on 1st January 2007)

There being no provision in the Company’s Articles of Association for
retirement of directors, all directors continue in office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its holding
company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

ESERE
EEgMAREARRBE_TT+LF=A=+—H
I FE 2 REEMEEZ B ®RE -

EERF
ARAREBEHBREER -

EERBRBRSE
ARRBE_TTLF=A=T—HILFEZXEH
RAFRFEREEER °

EEUNERRERE -

W - BERRE
ARBRFAZYE - BERREZBFH B HIEN
TSR MITEN

ES

ARARRFEARBEARERMIECESER
Bt/ ME (R=FELF—A—BEE)
MEELRE (R_FTFLF—A—BFI)
SKERE (R=_FTLF—A—HEED)
AxEEE (R-_FTZLF—A—BZE)
et (RM—ETEF-A—BZE)
MREEE (R-_FZTLF—A—BZE)
BRARCHEMERAAP I EBERESHINR
E MEERHERE -

ESRERSHZER
REZBRFREMER - ARRHEEAERAF]
BEEARFESERIMEREEA G CER
B84 -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS EEEH

No contracts of significance concerning the management and RERNNFEBRLBBURAGF 2 2T EARE
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the DER 7 SRR TR EERMBI R GFEZEREY -
Company was entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the

year. YNy S

AR HEIEB A BN FAEREERES R E

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR N . .
DEBENTURES {ﬂﬁ?ﬁ ’ @MEZKQﬂﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%)\$@ﬁjﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ@
N 5| Be 0 fA\GE £ B

At no time during the year was the Company or its holding company a ANBRZ B FFF M5

party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to ZEET

e eootlen O eI er SN TR A SRR ERATRE - S
panyerany y corporate. SR - BRI AN R 2 AR -

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Katon CPA Limited who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
EEEEMm

Runds

Director =%
Hong Kong, 12th September 2007
8 —ETFHA+TZH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF HKIA SERVICES LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of HKIA Services Limited set
out on pages 5 to 16, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st
March 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity
and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit, and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BITRMETRE | HEERBTEER

AizgEm (N [&

TRETEREME
EMBHRRERBE_STTLF-A=T—HNEE
BEREHEZALFENERER - BaEFHRMR
ERER - UREBEFBERME R H AR -

F] ) EELZENELRESR
Eﬁﬁi%*ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁjﬂ‘ﬂﬂﬁﬁ‘%iﬁi% 3

EEMMBRRARENSE

EE AR ERBES TS RMNE B BHE
R REB (A 7Mﬂ>mﬁ%ﬁm SEREEM
B RZEMERE - EEEBRRER - B
HrEERE L EE M S SR RER A ER AR
=) - DAEE IR T A R EREF S SR ER M8 B

MEARBRRL R ENEAEENTBER - AR
REAMEHA B SHEET
N EMR B E

EEMNEERBETSENERHZEVHRRIELE
8 iﬁwﬁ%<“ﬂﬁﬂ>%141%ﬁﬁéﬁ¥
BRI ERRE - TMEEMAR - TEM TR ARENHR
@ﬁﬁ@Aiﬁﬁjﬁ%&ﬂﬁEo

ZEORBEB M ASE G (FBZEEN)
EITEZIIE - L%EWEA LHTHEERE I
REI M RTTERT Méﬁﬁm%%%ﬁ%m%?fﬁ
EREEDN R

%%%ﬁ&iﬂﬁﬁf‘bﬂgﬁxﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁkiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@&?&
BEMNEHRRE - FIEENRFBURNET R #
- ”F]?EaﬂﬁEEE’:\,HJ’(E’FIX%E%W%&EM%#&%%T%E
REERBRAAE R - ERHAZ S ERE - FiTEIEE
,\;zg@%qﬁ&g, A B 5 B R BRI A
HRIES - ARRGHEE MBEER - BXIERSEHED

AR %UE’MI ERRER - BRI NEBRFEES
FIERAA SRR A BIEMAELN G A
B ARFHEMBHRERNERIHRT N

E—@JHF'E—%FM% E’J%V RERTEMEEHR
EFNERERIREER -
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Opinion ER

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the EERAYBRREILR (BBMEHRELER) BEE
state of the Company’s affairs as at 31st March 2007 and of its profit MARtbRE SRARR-_ZEET+FE=-A=1+—HH
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong EHRRE BEAREEZEZAIIEENESGNIRS SR
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared 2 WEKRES (AREH) HBEERETEER
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong &l o

Companies Ordinance.

QA a7

Katon CPA Limited 45 & 5tAT{T AR A A

Certified Public Accountants 12 & 1Al

Hong Kong,12th September 2007 &% *+ —EE+FNA+—H
Lee Kit Wah Z=ft%E

Practising Certificate number P1453 $1 3£ B £ 4w 5% P1453
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HKIA SERVICES LIMITED B AT
INCOME STATEMENT #8253

EoEELECR=t-ALERE

2007 2006

Notes iz HKS & HKS$ 7B

Turnover E%3 4 198,000 195,400

Other revenue E AU A 4 29,382 10,470

227,382 205,870

Less iii: Administrative and other operating expenses 1T & A &k E A& & H (49,805) (65,175)

Profit before taxation B %t 51 & F 5 177,577 140,695
Taxation 1§

Hong Kong profits tax FEHMEH 7 (24,864) (19,090)

Deferred taxation $EIEFIE 7 (2,376) (3,787)

Profit after taxation £ & F) 150,337 117,818
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HKIA SERVICES LIMITED B AT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ig#& a3

 Z_TT+F A+ —HILFE

Share Accumulated

capital profits Total

&N 2B R 5T

HK$ &k HK$ &k HKS &t

Balance at 31st March 2005 R —EZER&E=H=+—H 2 3,083,616 3,083,618
Net profit for the year R #4HF 0 117,818 117,818
Balance at 31st March 2006 R —EZE - E=H=+—H 2 3,201,434 3,201,436
Net profit for the year R #4HF 0 150,337 150,337
Balance at 31st March 2007 R —EZE+LE=A=+—H 2 3,351,771 3,351,773
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HKIA SERVICES LIMITED B AT
BALANCE SHEET : =

AS AT 31ST MARCH 2007 R=Z2Z+&=HA=+—FH

Notes izt
ASSETS &&
Non-current assets FER BN & &
Property, plant and equipment #1% - Bi&E M & 8
Current assets i Eh& &
Trade and other receivables & 5 [ H i fE Y7k 9
Bank and cash balances #8717 MIR & &5 64 10

TOTAL ASSETS & E#2%E

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES # =R & &

Capital and reserves & A K f##

Share capital I&Zx 1
Accumulated profits Z7& 5 7

Non-current liabilities JE i & & f&

Long term loan from ultimate holding company 2t B &4 A BRI E E 12
Deferred taxation IEEREIE 13

Current liabilities 3 B & f&
Other payables EAhFEHFR 14
Tax payable FEZIF{1E

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRER#E R & EHEHE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 12th September 2007.
REER-_ZEZLFANAT_EHEEHBE -

R,

HKS A&t

29,978

1,254,831

2

3,351,771

1,608,957

37,839

74,100

5,773

2007 2006
HKS$ i HKS A&
3,693,633 3,708,764
46,478

1,079,293

1,284,809 1,125,771
4,978,442 4,834,535
2

3,201,434

3,351,773 3,201,436
1,517,012

35,463

1,546,796 1,552,475
75,900

4,724

79,873 80,624
4,978,442 4,834,535

Director €% Director €%
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HKIA SERVICES LIMITED B AT
CASH FLOW STATEMENT I&iFEER

F_BELE-A=+-AILER

Operating activities 484 & &l
Operating profit &% |

Adjustments for FEIEF :
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #1% - BE LR EITE
Interest received & W F| &

.....

(Increase)/Decrease in assets: £ (1&h1) /@D
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H it U 3%
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities: BEE N/ (R ) A :
Other payables E b EfT X

Cash from operations &EFT15I1 &
Income tax paid 215

Net cash from operating activities Z& FHTSE EEH
Investing activities % & ;&)
Interest received & W F| &
Purchases of property, plant and equipment §& 8 ¥ - 5= K&
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities X & FBEIFTER &35
Financing activities B & & Bl
New long term loan from ultimate holding company raised [A13 B & &R A FFHENEE
Repayments long term loan from ultimate holding company A3k B &4 2B A RIME EE

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities B & EF5 (FFA) / IBREFH

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3 & % IR & {8 18 H 18 i35
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year £#EH & REEZE{EIEH

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FXZHRERFEEE

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents R& RIREEEIEB &R Z O
Bank and cash balances 877 & 3R & &5 &k

2007 2006
HK$ & HKS &
177,577 140,695
15,131 15,131
(27,582) (10,470)
165,126 145,356
16,500 (17,401)
(1,800) 820
179,826 128,775
(23,815) (25,564)
186,011 103,211
27,582 10,470

0 (58,055)

_____ 27,582 (47,58%)
0 8,055

(8,055) 0
....(8,059) . 8,055
175,538 63,681
1,079,293 1,015,612
1,254,831 1,079,293
1,254,831 1,079,293
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HKIA SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

The Company is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is The Hong Kong Institute of Archi-
tects, a company registered in Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The address of its registered office is 19/F., One Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

=5 AS—

Eg &

1. Bt
AARBREBTFMEINIART - ERKERAFANE ST, EAREMES -

ARABEBEBQREER -
ARBEEMPERUNETBRBEFEE 1581912 -
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Company has applied, for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”s), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”s) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are either effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2006. The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results for the current or prior ac-
counting periods are prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Company has not early applied the following Standards and Interpretations issued by Hong Kong Financial Reporting Interpreta-
tions Committee that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures

HK(FRIC) - INT 7 Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC) - INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - INT 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment

HK(IFRIC) - INT 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and treasury share transactions

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the above Standards and Interpretations will have no material impact
on the results and financial position of the Company.

2. R4 (FEMBREERD)

RS - ARAEKIAE TREBRIDAREH2 2 FOTEHHEELA  BEGLARRE CATHRB [HE80H
BERA) ) - RBEURRBR-FTAT A ARZEMBNRIEN - ROZEN AN B RS LAH A E R
REHEERHRREERZ PR EERE « Bt - MARNETEIERE -

AABLERFHRAATHEB SRS RM ERER) ZHERHEE

FREHERE 1 R(ER]) BAHE
BV MEERNRE 7 5 TRITE : KE

B (ARVBHEREZES) REBEE 7% ERTESMERNSE 20 % (RILREWREERRNMBE®RE) WEIITNE
&8 (ARVBEHRERELZES) RBFE 8%  HEVBHREERZE 2 RNEREE

&2 (BRFHEHRERELZES) 2BF IR  EFMERETLETA

T8 (BRYBERERERE

) BEF 1058 P EHMBRE SRE

B 18

8

58 (BRI BREREZES) 2EBE 115 FEUBREENEF— KEREFRNRS
ARBNEFERRAA LERNRBAARR B EE NP BR G EERATE




114

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial instruments, which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the principal accounting policies set out below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Office equipment 20%
The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference be-
tween the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income statement.

(b) Investment properties

Investment properties, which are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation, are stated at their fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

On disposal of investment properties, the gain or loss is directly recognise in the income statement.

3. EXERTHR
AR BEREDERELSHARBRALNEBRARL BAMBHEER - AREE (AFEH) ZRERR -
FARBREDEELRAEHERRY  HE TSR TARATEBEELN TG BERMML -

(a) W% -~ R Rk
W - B KRR EBRKAMER 2B E R REURER R

M - BERRERR 2T ETDRBEGEAIEAES - BEMAAREREE (F) & @ AEREMIEERAE  FFEXRMT :
AEmE 20%
WRERME 20%

WERZE BEZFHEERAIERFRONEEE AR RAE -

M BELRELHEXEERMELCRE  RIFEMFHREESE RAEMERZ ZEE - WTREBERERARK -

(b) EYE
REYESBEHRERSBEASIFAURNES R/ SHEERNEERGR 2 TN/ EEY  WIREEHNAFENR - REME
NFPEEHELEZBERNEEL BB ABRE -

HEREMEFN RSN ERRERER
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(c) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company become a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allow-
ance for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

(d) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

(c) &RIR

EARRKASTAGNRX 2RI - AIREERBERTHEREHEERSRAR

B SR H AR

B 5 REMBRRAERMNZEREFERANERRER - EHRTRERBATRIGRTEARDE - ApMEaR P ER AT

AREGE AEEE  MEFSEAEERAEREERMNE (RERERKE) BENGETARRSRECHEMEZE
Ll

R RRSZEHEH

RehkBeEERBRREEFRS  EHFFMEMENSERDRERER BEHSERDRESKIEREBRAE MBFENRA
T S REEERERRTA

B 5 R

5 REA B H YRR ERA I R B WA -
(d) AR EENELEERE
AAARNEHERBNAVAERBRVABNRES SR - DTS L AR THIREBROTE - MERIL IR - AR Af
SAENTRESBIENEE - ARTABELORESE (0F) SR AENEETRESHIER 3 - KRR E
HAENRSEABUOTRE BRI -

AIREIS B AR RAR  ATERE BEEMEOBSE - EFEEBEER - GHRRRSRHERR B AR TSR
R - RS RS BEF R AR A OER -

]

WEGFEE (HREELEM) NAKESBEERNEASHE  AKZEEE ReELEMN) NREEREEATNESHE - HE
ERNSMERRER - BRIFAREENELEBEAR -MEZFBENLT - BEREBEREEEMGE -
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impair-
ment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

(e) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

() Revenue recognition
i) Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

ii) Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable .

(g) Taxation
Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income state-

ment because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes income
statement items that are never taxable or deductible.

The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

MR EZBERERE @ AIZBEE CREELEN) MRESBEBEINELETTNMET T REISEE @ EIEINEMEASE T2 R
WEEEE BReELAEMN) MRBEFFEETERRREEERENERESRE - RESERLENIERRER  RIFEEEEIN
EHEBEAR - MEZSBEAT - BEAREREEEEGEE[HIEMN -
(e) HE
NG EEEHREEERER ZBANMER MR HREEZ AR A ZHLY B AREHE - FAIEEMBENREGEAKREH
#] o
AAFEAHEAN
KERAZHSWASNERFIIRERANFHERSRER - ERATHKEHOREA 2 VS EERAS MAREEEZFR
B WAESEIRHEOFRERARY -
(F) W NTE:R

) REHEYZHEWASUE S EILZAE BHNOFHER -

i) A BWATIRIEREEARS ME A BB F R EAE R -
(9) BiIE
PSS H¥e & BApE S R 18 MR e R IE -

EHRNRBRTREERRATOG N E - BRTUEN BB RARAN TR - tEARETEREEMFRERRR KR <A
NXHIER  TTERERRAKTRRIRZIEE - ARANESHIREE - ZEE A BHAAR EEmAOREAE -




117

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. De-
ferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business com-
bination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer prob-
able that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.

BRERIRAIEANAABHRRABER B EREEERNGEERNEN 2 HEREMEZZR  YNEERBRABEIRE - &
ERAEAERTE %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬁﬁw'ﬁﬁLMEQFWEFfT e BRBVSESRTUE A - 3 °] AR SH Rl FR B s =
REER HEREZEAR —HERAZERRNGN T TIEESHRMNZIR S (RHAHHRIN) hHaERECEERAEMS
B AN ERAREEERAE -

BEMBEE ZREESNSEAE BERE - WHADETKAIEBHE BHEREE MK E 2 EHENEERIZE -

EEFAZERARBELEERENEEAAMERKBXERERAZHEER ‘JZ PRI 2 R E - BERIASNAE Rt ABR
= EERERNB S AR ER AR - REERANSRRAE DT EIE
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4. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE 235 R E il A\

Turnover & %%
Rental income from investment property 3&& ¥ 84 WA

Other revenue H i\
Bank interest income $R17HE U0 A
Sundry income FBEURA

2007 2006
HKS B HKS B%
198,000 195,400
27,582 10,470
1,800 0
29,382 10,470
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5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION B&EigiZ Fl

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging the following: BRI BBt E AT & IH

2007

HKS B%

Auditors’ remuneration % Z A BN & 4,000
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ¥12 « HiE KR EFTE 15,131

2006
HKS &t

6,000
15,131

6. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION EE £

None of the directors received any remuneration in respect of their services to the Company during the year
(2006 : Nil).
RRAERESTNFARERRRENREMAEESNRENME - (ZTTRF )
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7. TAXATION #i18

The tax credit/(charge) comprises: FiB# D / (FREX L) B
Hong Kong profits tax & & FI15 8
Current year KEE

Deferred tax credit/(charge) [Note 13] iEEFIBFBRE / (ZH) (gt =)

2007 2006
HKS$ i HKS
(24,864) (19,090)
(2,376) (3,787)
(27,240) (22,877)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2006 : 17.5%) on estimated assessable profits for the year.

BFARENERIIAAFREFTERTOENIE 17.56% (ZFZT/NF 1 17.5%) tH -

The tax credit/(charge) for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before taxation per the income statement as follows:

FEZBRED (REXH) SRXEERZBRHINEN / (BB HROT

Profit/(Loss) before taxation BrEATEF]/ (E51E)

Tax credit/(charge) of Hong Kong Profit Tax rate of 17.5% (2006 : 17.5%)
IBED /(BRI ) « EBNEBE 17.5% (ZTFRF : 17.5%)

Tax effect of non-assessable revenues &R HO 5L 765 22 28

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T REFIRR ST £ TSR/ &

Tax credit/(charge) for the year FEF{BEE / (FRBEXH)

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 13. IEEFIE 7 SHEH KT += - .

2007 2006
HK$ &1 HKS &
177,577 140,695
(31,075) (24,622)
4,826 1,832
(991) (87)
(27,240) (22,877)
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT % - iR &R

Investment Leasehold Office
property improvements equipment Total
BEME HERSIE BHAERE HET

HKS i HKS$ i HKS$ i HKS 7

Cost or valuation B A< {4 {E
At 31st March 2006 and 31st March 2007
R-EERF=ZA=+—BKEK_ZTZ+F=A=+—H 3,650,000 67,600 14,705 3,732,305

Accumulated depreciation %?ﬁ?ﬁ%

At 31st March 2006 R—ZEZF=A=+—H 0 15,280 8,261 23,541
Charge for the year F£E 37 i} 0 13,520 1,611 15,131
At 31st March 2007 R—ZEZ+F=H=+—H 0 28,800 9,872 38,672

Net book value or carrying amount BR B3 E 5 BR E &

At 31st March 2007 R=ZZZE+HF=A=+—H 3,650,000 38,800 4,833 3,693,633
At 31st March 2006 R=ZZXF=H=1+—H 3,650,000 52,320 6,444 3,708,764

The Company’s interests in investment property at their carrying amount are analysed as follows:
RRAREHRE MRS REESTOT 2007 2006
HKS$ B # HKS &%

In Hong Kong held on: R&EBIFEA -
Leases of over 50 years A+ LA EFA) 3,650,000 3,650,000

The Company’s investment property is held for rental purposes under operating leases.

ARARFAREYMR - BNRRKEEMOURES -

The property was first revalued on 30th September 1993 on an open market value basis, by Prudential Surveyors International Limited,
an independent professional property valuer. The surplus arose on valuation of this investment property amounted to HK$8,697,185
was credited to revaluation reserve.

ZYENE—RER - BB ERAGAITARTAERATR - AN=ZFNA=TBRARMERELTER - RIEREWMEMBE
FTEL R ZERREE 8,697,185 TLEFTAEBRHE -

The second revaluation was carried out on 30th September 1998 by the Council’s representation. The surplus arose on valuation of
this investment property amounted to HK$2,616,833 was credited to revaluation reserve.

F-REHAEFERER-NNNFAA=TBEL - BEREMEGEMELNEFEE 2,616,833 TR AEMGRHE -

The third revaluation was carried out on 30th September 2001 on an open market value basis, by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional property valuer. The deficit arose on valuation of this investment property amounted to HK$7,896,000 was
debited to revaluation reserve.

=R BT HB N BEBIFTATTT Debenham Tie Leung Limited R —ZEZE—F N B =+ BIR AR EEEEITERG - 2BIREYME
mﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁréﬂaﬁém 7,896,000 LB B EfGHEER R -

The forth revaluation was carried out on 30th September 2003 on an open market value basis, by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional property valuer. The surplus arose on valuation of this investment property amounted to HK$100,000 was
credited to revaluation reserve.

FEIN R E LTy B BEBI5TAI7T Debenham Tie Leung Limited R —ZEZE=F N B =+ BIR AT ERLEEITER - 2BREME
HEFTELMABEE 100,000 TEFTAEGREE

The latest revaluation was carried out on 25th November 2004 on an open market value basis, by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional property valuer. The surplus arose on valuation of this investment property amounted to HK$1,150,000 was
credited to revaluation reserve.

— KRB TR E 2 BIFTAT1T Debenham Tie Leung Limited A —ZEZPUE+— A -+ A AR ARMEREETER - REK
BYEGEMELNBHBE 1,150,000 TTE T AEHREME -




122

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B 5 & H th FEWY =k

2007 2006

HKS$ i HKS &t

Trade receivables B & 5 R 11,550 28,050
Deposits and prepayments &% & T8 1E H 18,428 18,428
29,978 46,478

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

EERAE S MEAMRYGKIREE - BEAHERD -

10. BANK AND CASH BALANCES iRITRIRE 4565

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Company and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

RITEHERSBIEARANFERS UREMRAZISHEA=FASUAZ EHEREERE - ZFEENEAEREQ FEHE
o
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11. SHARE CAPITAL &

2007 2006
HKS B HKS B%

Authorised: YA :
10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 10,000 A% & @A% » FABE 1 7T 10,000 10,000

Issued and fully paid: B#T R ¢
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2 ¥ 3@A% - FRERE 1 7T 2 2
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12. LONG TERM LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY R ERATIZIEE

The directors consider that the carrying amount of long term loan from ultimate holding company approximates their fair value.

E=RR RERKERARZEENREERQAFERSE °

The loan is interest free, unsecured and not repayable within one year.
ZHEERA/REER  WHEERRIWIE—FATIH -
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13. DEFERRED TAXATION E3EHiIE

The following table shows the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

year:
TR EARE AR BT REHFRER EZRERIE

At 31st March 2005 R —EZERE=A=+—H
Credited/(Charged) to income statement #A / (f18) 18iEX

At 31st March 2006 R ZEEARE=ZA=+—H
Credited/(Charged) to income statement #A / (f18) 18iEX

At 31st March 2007 R—EFEt&£=A=+—H

Accelerated tax
depreciation
IERFIESTE

BE (BE) hRE@AZE) :
HKS &%

(31,676)
(3,787)

(35,463)
(2,376)

(37,839)
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14. OTHER PAYABLES H{thfE{F3k

2007 2006

HK$ &k HKS &

Deposits received BWiL & 68,100 68,100
Accruals fEEtIEE 6,000 7,800
74,100 75,900

The directors consider that the carrying amount of other payables approximates their fair value.

EX2ERA - HENRNREAERX FERS
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15. LEASE COMMITMENTS FH4y7% 1

The Company as a lessor A B 1E & HEA
At the balance sheet date, the Company had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:
BEAER  REBEAQREBFEIT ZHELY - ERRZEESMRZERBNT :

2007 2006

HKS B HKS &

Within one year —F A 198,000 198,000
In the second to fifth years inclusive R —FE2FAFER 21,450 219,450
219,450 417,450
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16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BARE G EE HIERBIE

The Company’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, bank and cash balance, long term loan from ultimate
holding company and other payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
ARRAFESHITABERKE ZBRASLEMMBUGK - RITAERR - RIERARNRPERRHEMENER - 2SR TAFBER
HEAMEHRE 2SR T AAERRIERERBERFAINT - EREENEERERMENEAR - URRLE RERHETES
Y

Credit risks 15 & BB
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables in the balance sheet represent the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Company’s financial assets. No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.
RRRFFER ZEHN AT EREENZANEERR - AEERBERAIITE S MEMBUGZ RE(E  Hibe) S Bl & E W B
BEXREERR -

nBEENEERBRAR  FEAR T ZERTREEFRZIRT

Interest rate risk |2 & k&
The Company has no significant exposure to interest rate risks as the Company did not use derivative financial instruments to hedge

its interest rate risk.
ARARWEMBEAFERRR AAXQARWEFRITESHTE - LEHFERR -

Liquidity risk 2N & & E

The Company'’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

RRANBEREHER AN RRHNRBDESHRT - BMREFEHNRSHE  WREEHARRPNRBESHRT °
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FOR MANAGEMENT INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY {${#&HEs

HKIA SERVICES LIMITED FE BB ZRIEHEL T
DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT FE4fit5 85

| Z_BEtE-A=+ AILERE

HK$ &%
Rental income &N
Other revenue Hfhit X
Bank interest income #8777 U A 27,582
Sundry income FEIEUWA 1,800
Less iii: Administrative and other operating expenses 1T K H 48 & 37
Auditors’ remuneration % £tEf Bl < 4,000
Bank charges $R1T&F 700
Business registration fee %t & 2,600
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ¥13 - E LR IEITE 15,131
Insurance Rk 720
Legal and professional fees (%2 Kk BEE M 10,500
Penalty &1k 868
Repair and maintenance # & R & 200
Sundry expenses HIE S H 86
Web-site programme expenses #3672 = & 15,000

Profit before taxation B %t 1 22 F

2007
HKS &

198,000

29,382

2006
HKS &

195,400

227,382

(49,805)

6,000
329
2,600
15,131
725
5,232
0
5,500
0
29,658

(65,175)

177,577

140,695




List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
E EEStRineers—ux

Choi Hung Estate ¥4I %8
Silver Medal R j#2&

AIA Building £EIR #B R K E
Silver Medal R ##4¢

Kowloon Hospital West Wing
NEBKRAR
Silver Medal R /24&

Sheraton Hotel Z R &E 5
Silver Medal fR j#2&

May Tower 13t
Silver Medal R f4&

Sheng Kung Hiu Bishop

Mok Sau Tsang Secondary School
ENREREeETE

Silver Medal R /£4&

Aircraft Catering Building &&= EE 5 A F)
Silver Medal R j#2&

Hong Kong Arts Centre & B E4ii /0
Silver Medal $R £

42 Sassoon Road ' EiE425%
Silver Medal #Rf%4&

Hung Hom Bay Centre A& /ts
Honorable Mention {8 £4&

Sui Wo Court BR58
Silver Medal R j#2&

Pak Sui Yuen B#51
Certificate of Merit {82 5&

Franki Centre 3%/
Certificate of Merit {8 24&

Cho Yiu Chuen Estate 8524
Certificate of Merit {EE2 &

Landmark E i1 5
Silver Medal R f£4&




List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
FESEREMBeFiE— 8%

St. Stephen’s College BB +i2 R
Certificate of Merit B2 &

Mei Lam Estate Phase 1 &M %855 —Hf
Certificate of Merit &2

Pak Tak Yuen Phase 1 {23555 —H
Certificate of Merit 8 24&

Aberdeen Market Complex
EBRFTBREEHTAE
Silver Medal R j#2&

The Discovery Bay i 5#&
Silver Medal R j#4&

St. John's Building B8 A&
Certificate of Merit £ 24

Yan Oi Tong Community and Indoor Sports Centre
CEEHBRENEEHRL
Certificate of Merit {82 &

Canossian Convent Primary and
Secondary School

BHMER (NBRAZE)
Silver Medal R j#2&

Mong Tung Wan Youth Hostel 25 & F ikttt
President’s Prize &1 #&it

French International School 3% B EIFE 1R
Certificate of Merit f#252

Wayfoong Plaza B2 .4
Certificate of Merit B2 2

Exchange Square X 5 &%
Silver Medal R /%£4&

Siu Hong Court Home Ownership Scheme
PIY: 27
Silver Medal fR j#2&

Goldfish & Centenary Pavilions
SARBEREEAESERFARLE

President’s Prize & &t

The Academy for Performing Arts & &8 £2 03
Honorable Mention




List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
EESERAMNBSFE—BX

6A Bowen Road EEE X%
Silver Medal fR j#2&

Hong Kong Jockey Club Members’ Clubhouse, Shatin
ERESEVHEMN
Silver Medal R j#2&

Thomas De La Rue Ltd EFIREEBBR A ARE
Certificate of Merit & 24E

Pak Sha O Youth Hostel B )R E F ks
President’s Prize &2t

Mei Lam Indoor Recreation Centre
EMEREBE
Silver Medal R j#2&

Ruttonjee Centre EZEF 0
Certificate of Merit &2 &

St Joan of Arc Secondary School 2 g &
Certificate of Merit 24

Tuen Mun Technical Institute 79 T 2226z
Certificate of Merit {82 3¢

Bayview Residential Development
BEHHBEE

Certificate of Merit {E24&

Harcourt House B A&
Certificate of Merit E25%

Tsuen Wan Columbarium %5 2 7z B
Certificate of Merit {EE2 &

Ellen's Lodge & T 2
President’s Prize &< 2&ix

The Repulse Bay £/&E
Silver Medal #Rf#4&

Hong Kong International School & /& EIF 2%
Certificate of Merit &2 &

Heng On Estate IR EHRNE
Certificate of Merit B2 &




List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
FESEREMBeFiE— 8%

1989
Tai Fu Tai XK5E
President’s Prize & f< 4t

1990

The Hong Kong Housing Authority Headquarters
EREEZEEHEY

Silver Medal R j#2&

1990

Hong Kong Baptist College Campus Redevelopment
EHIERE

Certificate of Merit 24

1990
Hong Kong Science Museum & 8HH 268
Certificate of Merit B2 2

1991
Clague Garden T2 B #F
Certificate of Merit B2 &

1991
Lok Fu Shopping Centre Il 4= 15—
Certificate of Merit B2 2

1991
Kun Ting Study Hall &=
President’s Prize & f< 4t

1992

Kwong Yuen Estate Commercial Centre
BERBES

Certificate of Merit /242

1992

The Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club
Happy Valley Clubhouse

ERAREESAM
Certificate of Merit #2452
1992

Visual Arts Centre, Hong Kong Museum of Art
HREBEM D
Certificate of Merit {824

1992

The Royal Hong Kong Jockey Club
Racecourse Jockey Club Box
ERESEVHESEERE

President’s Prize & f< 2%k

1993

Entertainment Building 124417
Silver Medal R j#4&

1993

Hong Kong Technical College (Tsing Yi)
EREBIESR

Certificate of Merit {E2 4%
1994

Citibank Plaza BEIB@BR1T
Silver Medal R /£4&

1994

Dragon Centre P8 JLEE A
Certificate of Merit B2 2



List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
FESEREMBeFiE— 8%

1994
Pubic Toilet at Hing Fat Street
RS FEAT A SR AT

President’s Prize & f< 4t

1995

Peninsula Hotel Extension
¥EREREIR

Silver Medal #Rf#4&

1995

Singapore International School
0K B R R AR

Certificate of Merit {2 &

1995

Ho Sin Hang Engineering Building, CUHK
BRPUARBAEHIEAE

Certificate of Merit #2252

1995

Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre
FBIEME DL

Certificate of Merit /12 4&

1995

Chan Nam Chong Memorial School
REERSER (BHRHEAR)
President’s Prize & R4t

1996
Hong Kong Temple B2
Certificate of Merit &2 &

1996
Lingnan College 5223
Certificate of Merit & 252

1996
West Island School BB +H 2
Certificate of Merit {824

1996
Broadway Cinematheque & &E & §/ /0
President’s Prize & f< %t

1997
Chuang’s City Tower #t i A&
Certificate of Merit 1B £ &

1997

Jockey Club Environmental Building
BESRRE

Certificate of Merit &2 52

1998
Graduate House BB X SMEEE
Silver Medal R f£4&

1998

Hong Kong International Airport Passenger Terminal
EREBRBEREE

Silver Medal R f#4¢

1998
Verbena Heights B4 TEE
Silver Medal R j#4&




List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
FESEREMBeFiE— 8%

1998

KCRC Hung Hom Station Renovation and Extension
NEHRAMBELSEREETRE

Certificate of Merit {24

1998
Ohel Leah Synagogue ¥ | B AHE
Certificate of Merit & £2&

1998
Fu House fi=&
President’s Prize & R #&{t

1999
Tung Chung Crescent 524 B¢
Silver Medal #f#4¢

1999

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey Club Building
ERBEENERBET AR

Certificate of Merit {82 3&

1999

Hong Kong Station & Development Phase 1
HEPRIE R FE-ERE

Certificate of Merit {824

1999
Tsing Yi Complex B{k4RE A1g
Certificate of Merit {2 4&

1999
Health Education Exhibition & Resources Centre
FEBBRERERF O

President’s Prize & f< 2t

2000

Dragonair / CNAC Headquarters
BEMERTERMN (EH) K12
Silver Medal #R i€

2000

The Hong Kong Museum of Coastal Defence
EREHEYE

Silver Medal R f#4¢

2000

Cathay Pacific Airways Headquarters
RS RN E PN 3

Certificate of Merit 24

2000

Tung Chung Town Centre Development
RBEmPOBRE GRER)

Certificate of Merit B2 2

2000

University of Hong Kong Kadoorie Biological
Sciences Building
BERRBREBRLYNBEXE

Certificate of Merit 8258

2000

Wing Kwong Pentecostal Holiness Church
HAREREKEE

Certificate of Merit {822

2000

Hong Kong Wetland Park Phase |
BERELAEE B

President’s Prize & f< %t




Innevative School Design
Parameters in Hong Kong
For 21 st Century
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List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
FESEREMBeFiE— 8%

Jockey Club Mt. Davis Youth Hostel
BESEEEFTFRS

President’s Prize &2t

HK Garden at '99 International

Horticultural Exposition in Kunming
HEEHOHRAEES - HERE

Award for Members’ Works Outside of Hong Kong
BEEBREIMERLE

Australian International School, Hong Kong
BRBMNERER

HKIA Medal of the Year
BEERMEEDFEEAR

8 Queen’s Road Central £ 5 K& H8%%
HKIA Merit Award
BEEFMEESBRLE

56 Plantation Road TE 18385655
HKIA Merit Award
BEEERMEEEASE

Hollywood Terrace faiZ55& £ 2
HKIA Merit Award
BBEEMESERSE

Mega iAdvantage
HKIA Merit Award & BT EF R

The Bamboo Pavilion Festival of Vision - Hong Kong in Berlin
AHMIALE - 115

Award for Members’ Works Outside of Hong Kong
ESEBREIMERE

Murray House EF#&
Special Architectural Award - Heritage
TREREESE - XYEE

Developing Innovative School Design Parameters in
Hong Kong for 21st Century

AR FBRRAIMREHE SR

Special Architectural Award - Architectural Research
TS - BENR

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Jockey Club
Primary School HEEH B BRBEE /N2

HKIA Medal of the Year
BEEFMEEDFEEAR

Hillview Court 4838 —5%
HKIA Merit Award & BZZEMEEFRE

Kingston International School
RHTHE R
President’s Prize & 2k

Veterinary Laboratory at Tai Lung Farm
AREERER1LER FT

Special Architectural Award - Sustainable Design
FREREER - TIARERT

Boao Canal Village & @EF
Award for Members’ Works Outside of Hong Kong
ESEBRIMERE



List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
El [FasEREMBSFIRE—8R

2002

He Xiangning Art Gallery 1A% 5 3 1788

Award for Members’ Works Outside of Hong Kong
ESEBREIMERE

2003

1 Peking Road 1tZUE—5%
HKIA Medal of the Year
BEEEMBERFEEAR

2003

Public Health Laboratory Centre
AREFERBABO

HKIA Merit Award & B EMEEERRE

2003
Improvement of Sai Kung Waterfront
BEESERELR

President’s Prize & f<#&/ik

2003
Lantern Wonderland %% X # &
President’s Prize & &k

2003
Fairview Park Alliance Church S B & #R& =
President’s Prize & 2t

2003

C Y Tung Maritime Museum E%EREBYE
Award for Members’ Works Outside of Hong Kong
EEEBEIMERLE

2003

Sheraton Suzhou Hotel # /MR B ZR&EKBEE
Award for Members’ Works Outside of Hong Kong
EEEBREIMERE

2003

Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre and Plaza
FETHERES

Special Architectural Award — Urban Design
FRERESEE - #raRaT

2004

Diocesan Boys’ School Primary Section
WEBER N2

HKIA Medal of the Year

BBEEMEE R FEEALE

2004

No. 21 Severn Road it Eh&215%
HKIA Merit Award
BEERMEEERLE

2004

EMSD Headquarters Building
HEIRBEBAR

HKIA Merit Award & B2 E S B 25

2004

SK Telecom Headquarter

Award for Members’ Works Outside of Hong Kong
ESEBLEIMERSE

2004

Shantou University Student Activity Centre Phase |
JWFE R BB ETER) 0 —Hf

Award for Members’ Works Outside of Hong Kong
EEEBREIMERLE

2004

Fanling Open Space in Area 18 & 21
MEBAEDE

President’s Prize & f< 4t
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FESEREMBeFiE— 8%

2004

Tao Fong Shan Christian Centre
EREWLEERENK

Special Architectural Award — Heritage
AR - XYPEE

2004

Margaret Trench Red Cross School
BREABBUA+TEEE

Special Architectural Award — Accessibility
FREREESE - EIERIRE

2004

Yan Fook Chapel 218/ EE

Special Architectural Award — Architectural Interior
TSR - ERRET

2004

Universal Accessibility — Best Practices and Guidelines
1EETT - RIFERIES

Special Architectural Award - Architectural Research
THEEER - BEEWMR

2005

Hong Kong Wetland Park Phase Il

BERGELAEE =S

HKIA Medal of the Year
BBEEMBE R FEEALE

2005

Tai Kok Tsui Municipal Services Building
RABEHHRAE

HKIA Merit Award

BREEMEEERSR

LT
SR L

2005

Sunny Bay Station

fRB Y

HKIA Merit Award

EBEEMEEERSE

2005

A Bridge too Far, A Dream Comes True

RIEHBEHE

Award for Members' Works Outside of Hong Kong

EEEBEIMERE

2005

Boatyard : Kingship Marine Headquarters (China)
R SROSA AR LU B R D R4

Award for Members' Works Outside of Hong Kong

BEEEBEIMERSE

2005

Vanke Chengdu Commercial Complex
REBRB N 2 HHERE

Award for Members' Works Outside of Hong Kong
BEEBEIMERSE

2005
Adrenaline

President's Prize
B REM

2005

Residential Development No. 52 Hollywood Road
fRIEEES25

President's Prize

ERE&)

2005

The Centres of Central IR LE

Special Architectural Award — Accessibility
FREEAER - EIERRAT

2005

Feasibility Study for Establishment of Air Ventilation
Assessment System

ERBRETT AT IHFR

Special Architectural Award - Architectural Research
THEEER - BEEMR

2005

Hogn Kong Heritage Discovery Centre at Kowloon Park
BEXYRAE

Special Architectural Award — Heritage

FRARSEIE- Y




139

List of Past HKIA Annual Awards
[EaSEREMBEFIRE—BER

2005

HKS+H Plastic and Reconstruction Surgery Centre
BHNER

Special Architectural Award — Architectural Interior
FREBES - KA

2005

Police Headquarters, Arsenal House
LRAMER AR

Special Architectural Award — Architectural Interior
FREESESE - ERRT
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